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WHEREUPON, the f o l l o w i n g proceedings were had a t 

1:03 p.m.: 

EXAMINER BROOKS: At t h i s time we w i l l c a l l Case 

Number 12,943, the A p p l i c a t i o n of Great Western D r i l l i n g 

f o r compulsory p o o l i n g , Lea County, New Mexico, and 

companion Case Number 12,922, the A p p l i c a t i o n of David H. 

A r r i n g t o n O i l and Gas, Inc., f o r compulsory p o o l i n g , Lea 

County, New Mexico. 

The determination, I be l i e v e , a t the conclusion 

of the hearing i n Case Number 12,922 p r e v i o u s l y was t h a t i t 

would be continued t o t h i s date f o r c o n s i d e r a t i o n i n 

connection w i t h Case Number 12,943, so I b e l i e v e these two 

cases w i l l be consolidated f o r the purpose of t h i s hearing, 

and they w i l l r e t a i n t h e i r e x i s t i n g case numbers. 

C a l l f o r appearances on both cases, 12,92 2 and 

12,943. 

MR. OWEN: May i t please the Examiner, my name i s 

Paul R. Owen. I'm w i t h the Santa Fe law f i r m of Montgomery 

and Andrews, appearing on behalf of Great Western D r i l l i n g 

Company i n both cases. 

I have two witnesses i n t h i s matter. 

MR. HALL: Mr. Examiner, Scott H a l l , M i l l e r , 

S t r a t v e r t and Torgerson law f i r m , Santa Fe, appearing on 

behalf of David H. A r r i n g t o n O i l and Gas, Incorporated. 

I have two witnesses t h i s morning, one of which 
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was p r e v i o u s l y sworn i n Case 12,922 two weeks ago; i t ' s 

B i l l Baker. I n a d d i t i o n , Dale Douglas appeared i n another 

case t h i s morning, he's been sworn. I plan t o c a l l a t t h i s 

time only one witness but would l i k e t o reserve the r i g h t 

t o c a l l Mr. Douglas i f necessary. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay. 

MR. HALL: I f we need t o have them sworn again or 

not, they're — 

EXAMINER BROOKS: The record w i l l r e f l e c t t h a t 

Mr. Douglas and Mr. Baker were both sworn t h i s morning. 

W i l l your witnesses please stand t o be sworn? 

MR. CARR: May i t please the Examiner --

EXAMINER BROOKS: I'm sorr y . 

MR. CARR: — my name i s W i l l i a m F. Carr. I'm 

w i t h the Santa Fe o f f i c e of Holland and Hart, L.L.P. We'd 

l i k e t o enter our appearance i n the consolidated cases f o r 

Yates Petroleum Corporation. We're appearing i n support of 

Great Western D r i l l i n g Company and are executing t h e i r 

o p e r a t i n g agreement. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Do you have any witnesses? 

MR. CARR: No, I do not. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay, very good. 

W i l l your witnesses please stand t o be sworn, Mr. 

Owen? 

(Thereupon, the witnesses were sworn.) 
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MR. OWEN: Mr. Examiner, f o r my f i r s t witness I 

c a l l Mr. Mike Headington. 

MICHAEL S. HEADINGTON. 

the witness h e r e i n , a f t e r having been f i r s t d u l y sworn upon 

h i s oath, was examined and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. OWEN: 

Q. Mr. Headington, would you please t e l l us your 

f u l l name and where you l i v e ? 

A. Michael Slade Headington, and I re s i d e i n 

Midland, Texas. 

Q. Who do you work for? 

A. I work f o r Great Western D r i l l i n g Company, also 

out of Midland. 

Q. And what do you do f o r Great Western? 

A. I'm the land manager f o r Great Western. 

Q. Are you a c e r t i f i e d p u b l i c landman? 

A. No, I'm not, I'm a r e g i s t e r e d p r o f e s s i o n a l 

landman. 

Q. Okay. Have you p r e v i o u s l y t e s t i f i e d before the 

D i v i s i o n and had your c r e d e n t i a l s as a petroleum landman 

accepted and made a matter of record? 

A. Yes, I believe so. 

Q. Are you f a m i l i a r w i t h the A p p l i c a t i o n f i l e d i n 

t h i s case? 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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A. Yes. 

Q. Are you f a m i l i a r w i t h the s t a t u s of the lands i n 

the s ubject area? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Are you aware t h a t i n Case Number 12,922, David 

H. A r r i n g t o n O i l and Gas, Inc., has sought t o have the same 

lands pooled and dedicated t o a s i m i l a r w e l l w i t h A r r i n g t o n 

t o be named as operator? 

A. Yes, we are. 

Q. Are you aware t h a t A r r i n g t o n ' s A p p l i c a t i o n was 

heard by the D i v i s i o n on September 5th, 2 002? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Have you reviewed the e x h i b i t s o f f e r e d by 

A r r i n g t o n i n the September 5th hearing and the t r a n s c r i p t 

from t h a t hearing? 

A. Yes, I have. 

Q. Does Great Western seek a d i f f e r e n t w e l l l o c a t i o n 

than t h a t proposed by David H. A r r i n g t o n O i l and Gas, I n c . , 

i n Case Number 12922? 

A. No, we do not. As Russell Richards w i l l t a l k 

about l a t e r , our seismic i n t e r p r e t a t i o n t h a t we've done 

through our 3-D work i s — we're okay w i t h t h a t , t h a t same 

l o c a t i o n . 

Q. Do you have a d i f f e r e n t w e l l name f o r the 

prospect? 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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A. Yes, we do. We p r e f e r t o c a l l i t the Great 

Western D r i l l i n g Federal "34" Com Number 1 w e l l . 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Mr. Owen, are you going t o 

tender the witness as an expert? 

MR. OWEN: I ' l l do t h a t now, sure. I tender the 

witness as an expert. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay, he i s so q u a l i f i e d . 

Q. (By Mr. Owen) Does Great Western propose t o 

d r i l l t o a d i f f e r e n t formation or horizon than t h a t 

proposed by A r r i n g t o n i n Case Number 12,922? 

A. No, we do not. 

Q. Are you prepared t o e x p l a i n why Great Western 

should be designated the operator of t h i s w e l l i n s t e a d of 

Arrington? 

A. Yes, we are. Yes, I am. 

Q. Can you t e l l us what Great Western seeks w i t h 

t h i s A p p l i c a t i o n ? 

A. B a s i c a l l y , we seek an order p o o l i n g a l l mineral 

i n t e r e s t s u n d e r l y i n g the east h a l f of Section 3 4 of 

Township 15 South, Range 34 East, Lea County, New Mexico, 

i n the f o l l o w i n g manner: 

b a s i c a l l y a l l formations and/or pools developed 

on 320-acre spacing w i t h i n t h a t v e r t i c a l e x t e n t , i n c l u d i n g 

but not l i m i t e d t o the Undesignated North Edison-Morrow Gas 

Pool; 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

11 

a l l formations developed on 160-acre spacing 

u n d e r l y i n g the southeast q u a r t e r ; 

a l l formations developed on 80-acre spacing 

u n d e r l y i n g the n o r t h h a l f , southeast q u a r t e r , i n c l u d i n g but 

not l i m i t e d t o the Undesignated North Edison-Strawn Pool; 

and a l l formations developed on 40-acre spacing 

u n d e r l y i n g the northeast quarter, southeast q u a r t e r , which 

includes but i s not l i m i t e d t o the Townsend-Permo Penn 

Pool; 

and sa i d spacing and p r o r a t i o n u n i t s are t o be 

dedicated t o our proposed Federal "34" Com Number 1 w e l l , 

t o be d r i l l e d a t a standard l o c a t i o n i n the southeast 

q u a r t e r of Section 34. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . 

EXAMINER BROOKS: C l a r i f i c a t i o n . I t sounded l i k e 

t h a t you were saying Edison. I s t h a t Edison or Eidson? 

THE WITNESS: I t i s Edison. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: I t i s Edison, okay. I wanted 

t o c l a r i f y t h a t because I'm f a m i l i a r w i t h the North Eidson 

and I wanted t o be sure I had i t r i g h t . Go ahead. 

Q. (By Mr. Owen) A l l r i g h t , why don't you take a 

look a t Great Western's E x h i b i t Number 1? Can you review 

t h a t f o r the Examiner, please? 

A. Yes, t h a t ' s a land map t h a t has the proposed 

spacing and p r o r a t i o n u n i t o u t l i n e d i n green i n the east 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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h a l f of Section 34. I t also has i n red the proposed 

footage w e l l l o c a t i o n , which i s 1700 f e e t from the south 

l i n e , 950 f e e t from the east l i n e of s a i d Section 34. 

Q. A l l r i g h t , and what's the primary o b j e c t i v e of 

the w e l l ? 

A. Atoka-Morrow. 

Q. So i t ' s a dual primary o b j e c t i v e ? 

A. I t ' s k i n d of a dual primary o b j e c t i v e t a r g e t . 

Q. Okay. When d i d you s t a r t t o consider t h i s 

p r o j e c t ? 

A. Great Western received several — We've been out 

here as a lease owner i n t h i s area f o r — you know, since 

the e a r l y 1970s. And r e c e n t l y , towards the end of l a s t 

year, the beginning of t h i s year, Yates Petroleum made 

several s i g n i f i c a n t requests t o purchase or farm i n our 

i n t e r e s t i n t h i s area, and t h a t ' s when we began, the f i r s t 

of t h i s year, maybe towards the end of l a s t year, we began 

updating our g e o l o g i c a l i n f o r m a t i o n and seeing the new 

a c t i v i t y , seeing what people were proposing, t o t r y and 

extend t h i s Atoka t r e n d northward. So b a s i c a l l y we've been 

l o o k i n g a t i t now f o r about ten months. 

Q. A l l r i g h t , and when d i d you s t a r t t a l k i n g t o 

other i n t e r e s t owners i n the w e l l about t h i s p r o j e c t ? 

A. Upon r e c e i p t of David A r r i n g t o n ' s w e l l proposal 

we immediately began updating our t i t l e i n f o r m a t i o n and 
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immediately t a l k i n g t o Yates Petroleum, David Petroleum, 

C o l i n McMillan, et a l . , about who needs t o go about 

p o s s i b l y being the operator of t h i s spacing u n i t . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Have you obtained a d r i l l i n g permit 

f o r t h i s l o c a t i o n ? 

A. No, we have not. 

Q. And what's the process involved f o r your 

o b t a i n i n g a d r i l l i n g permit? 

A. Well, Mr. A r r i n g t o n does have a v a l i d permit f o r 

the same l o c a t i o n t h a t we are wishing t o d r i l l , and we 

understand — and we've done t h i s i n other areas — t h a t 

b a s i c a l l y t h a t permit, depending on the outcome of these 

p o o l i n g A p p l i c a t i o n s , i f necessary, can be e a s i l y 

t r a n s f e r r e d by sundry n o t i c e t o , h o p e f u l l y , Great Western 

D r i l l i n g Company i f we're successful. 

Q. Does t h a t r e q u i r e A r r i n g t o n ' s assent t o the 

t r a n s f e r ? 

A. From what I understand, i t does not. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . And t h a t ' s a t r a n s f e r of the permit 

from the BLM; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. I t ' s a t r a n s f e r of the approved BLM permit, yes. 

Q. Okay. Let's t u r n t o Great Western E x h i b i t Number 

2. Could you e x p l a i n t h a t f o r the Examiner, please? 

A. E x h i b i t 2 i s b a s i c a l l y our ownership e x h i b i t t h a t 

we attached t o our j o i n t operating agreement t h a t has been 
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sent out t o the p a r t i e s i n our e f f o r t s t o o b t a i n v o l u n t a r y 

j o i n d e r t o t h i s w e l l proposal. E x h i b i t 2, l i k e I s a i d , i s 

attached t o our j o i n t operating agreement, which 

e s s e n t i a l l y has been executed by, of course, a l l p a r t i e s t o 

date, w i t h the exception of David A r r i n g t o n . 

Q. A l l r i g h t , and what percentage of the acreage i s 

v o l u n t a r i l y committed t o the well? 

A. We c u r r e n t l y have a v o l u n t a r y commitment t o our 

w e l l proposal and j o i n t operating agreement of 67.97 

percent — 

Q. Okay. 

A. — of the working i n t e r e s t . 

Q. Keeping E x h i b i t Number 2 out, I want you t o put 

E x h i b i t Number 3 beside i t . Can you t e l l me what E x h i b i t 

Number 3 is? 

A. Yes, E x h i b i t Number 3 i s the breakdown of 

ownership t h a t Mr. A r r i n g t o n presented a t the hearing l a s t 

month f o r the east h a l f of Section 34. 

Q. Okay. And i s there a d i f f e r e n c e i n the 

percentages shown on E x h i b i t 2 and the percentages shown on 

E x h i b i t Number 3? 

A. Yes, there's several d i f f e r e n c e s . B a s i c a l l y , the 

f i r s t being David A r r i n g t o n i s combining h i s working 

i n t e r e s t w i t h an i n t e r e s t t h a t we c r e d i t t o Tom Brown, 

I n c . , on our E x h i b i t , a l i t t l e over 7 percent of the 
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working i n t e r e s t . I t looks l i k e he's combining, o f f of our 

e x h i b i t , the 24.85 percent we show f o r Mr. A r r i n g t o n w i t h 

the Tom Brown i n t e r e s t , which I assume he has under some 

type of a l e t t e r agreement or c o n t r a c t t o be assigned t o 

him l a t e r . 

There's also — Every other i n t e r e s t l i s t e d on 

t h i s e x h i b i t , a l l the David Petroleum, Yates Petroleum, e t 

a l . , groups, t h e i r i n t e r e s t s are also d i f f e r e n t than our 

e x h i b i t t h a t we are presenting. 

And the reason f o r t h a t i s , i n our discussions t o 

ob t a i n v o l u n t a r y j o i n d e r t o our proposal, we discovered 

from B i l l Owen w i t h the David Group i n Roswell t h a t they 

have an e x p i r a t i o n agreement, o f f - t h e - r e c o r d e x p i r a t i o n 

agreement t h a t determines the ownership between the David 

Petroleum group, Yates Petroleum group, as t o t h e i r 

i n t e r e s t i n t h i s proposed p r o r a t i o n u n i t . And t h e r e f o r e , 

every i n t e r e s t on the A r r i n g t o n e x h i b i t i s d i f f e r e n t than 

the i n t e r e s t which we show, which we b e l i e v e t o be c o r r e c t 

on our E x h i b i t "A" t h a t we're showing today, our E x h i b i t 

Number 2. 

Q. Have you done land work independent of t h a t done 

by A r r i n g t o n and presented i n t h e i r September 5th hearing? 

A. Yes, yes, l i k e I sa i d , we've been i n , you know, 

several discussions w i t h a l l the p a r t i e s l i s t e d on t h i s 

e x h i b i t , and they are i n agreement t h a t the i n t e r e s t s set 
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out on our e x h i b i t are c o r r e c t . 

Q. Okay. So you're not j u s t piggy-backing on 

A r r i n g t o n ' s e f f o r t s on the land side? 

A. No, s i r . 

Q. Okay. Now, you've i n d i c a t e d t h a t the other 

i n t e r e s t owners, w i t h the exception of A r r i n g t o n and Tom 

Brown, I n c . , are committed t o Great Western's proposal; i s 

t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. Correct. 

Q. How are they committed t o Great Western's 

proposal? 

A. They have signed our proposed AFE and approved 

t h a t AFE f o r the l o c a t i o n we have proposed, and they also 

are s i g n a t o r y t o our j o i n t operating agreement t h a t i s 

E x h i b i t Number 4 t o t h i s hearing. 

Q. A l l r i g h t , l e t ' s go ahead and take a look a t 

t h a t . Why don't you e x p l a i n t h a t f o r the Examiner, please? 

A. E x h i b i t 4, of course, i s an o p e r a t i n g agreement 

dated September 12th, 2002. I t ' s i n the model form 

o p e r a t i n g agreement of A.A.P.L. approved Form 610-1989 

form. I t i s a c o n t r a c t , of course, t h a t governs w e l l 

proposals, nonconsent operations, accounting procedures, 

b a s i c a l l y a l l the terms and c o n d i t i o n s t h a t normally go 

w i t h g e t t i n g a w e l l d r i l l e d i n t h i s s t a t e absent a p o o l i n g 

order. So... 
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And again, l i k e I said, there are 14 i n t e r e s t 

owners i n here t h a t have executed t h i s c o n t r a c t , naming 

Great Western D r i l l i n g Company as operator of the w e l l . 

Q. This operating agreement names Great Western as 

operator; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. Yes, i t does. 

Q. Does i t govern subsequent operations? 

A. Yes, i t does. 

Q. So i f an i n f i l l w e l l or some other prospect were 

developed on t h i s acreage, t h i s JOA would govern those 

subsequent operations; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. Yes, i t w i l l . 

Q. Does t h i s contain p r o v i s i o n s i n i t which are i n 

a d d i t i o n t o those which might be found i n a t y p i c a l 

compulsory p o o l i n g order issued by the D i v i s i o n ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And do those have t o do w i t h accounting and 

operations and t h i n g s l i k e that? 

A. Yeah, subsequent operations, and i t provides f o r 

p e n a l t i e s associated w i t h nonconsenting owners on d i f f e r e n t 

w e l l proposals, and of course sets out the i n t e r e s t s of the 

p a r t i e s c o r r e c t l y . 

Q. Okay. And how many i n t e r e s t owners d i d you say 

had committed t o t h i s proposal, t o t h i s JOA? 

A. A l l of them but David A r r i n g t o n O i l and Gas, and 
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I b e l i e v e t h a t t o be 14. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . About halfway through the e x h i b i t are 

a bunch of signature pages. Are those i n f a c t the 

sign a t u r e pages of these other p a r t i e s ? 

A. Those are the signature pages t h a t have been 

signed by the authorized person of those d i f f e r e n t 

e n t i t i e s , yes. 

Q. And d i d these r e s u l t as a r e s u l t of your 

n e g o t i a t i o n s w i t h these other i n t e r e s t owners? 

A. We f i n d i t very h e l p f u l t o , you know, p i c k up the 

phone and c a l l people when we get i n t o these matters and — 

you know, and discuss p e r t i n e n t t h i n g s which we f e e l l i k e , 

you know, govern any approved w e l l t h a t needs t o be 

d r i l l e d , and these are the d i r e c t r e s u l t of those 

discussions, both v e r b a l l y and w r i t t e n , w i t h these p a r t i e s . 

Q. Okay, l e t ' s go ahead and take a look a t E x h i b i t 

Number 5. Can you t e l l me what t h a t is? 

A. That i s our AFE f o r the w e l l . 

Q. When d i d you submit t h i s AFE t o the other 

i n t e r e s t owners i n the well? 

A. I be l i e v e i t was submitted September 5th of 2002. 

Q. I s t h a t the same day as the hearing i n 

Ar r i n g t o n ' s Case 12,922? 

A. Yes, i t was. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Why don't you review the t o t a l s on 
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t h a t AFE f o r the Examiner? 

A. The estimated dryhole cost on t h i s AFE r e f l e c t 

$941,500 worth of a n t i c i p a t e d expenditures, the completed 

w e l l cost we estimate t o be $550,100, f o r a t o t a l completed 

w e l l cost of $1,491,600. Not any s i g n i f i c a n t d i f f e r e n c e 

w i t h the w e l l proposal t h a t Mr. A r r i n g t o n has made. 

Q. And I want t o go ahead and make t h a t comparison. 

Why don't you — Keeping E x h i b i t Number 5 i n f r o n t of you, 

can you e x p l a i n E x h i b i t Number 6 t o the Examiner? 

A. I'm sor r y , Paul? 

Q. Can you e x p l a i n E x h i b i t Number 6 f o r the 

Examiner, please? What i s E x h i b i t Number 6? 

A. E x h i b i t Number 6 i s David A r r i n g t o n O i l and Gas's 

a u t h o r i t y f o r expenditure, t h e i r estimated cost of the w e l l 

t h a t they've proposed. I t c a l l s f o r an estimated dryhole 

cost of $995,2 01, t h e i r estimated dryhole cost, which, w i t h 

t h e i r completed w e l l cost, being $529,700, and a t o t a l 

estimated w e l l cost of $1,524,901. 

Q. Okay. Are the costs t h a t Great Western proposes 

i n E x h i b i t Number 5 i n l i n e w i t h what's being charged by 

other operators i n the area? 

A. I b e l i e v e they are. 

Q. And have you estimated overhead and 

a d m i n i s t r a t i v e costs while d r i l l i n g the w e l l and als o w h i l e 

producing the w e l l i f i t ' s successful? 
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A. Yes, we have. The d r i l l i n g w e l l r a t e t h a t we are 

es t i m a t i n g , which we believe i s competitive w i t h other 

r a t e s charged i n the area, i s $6000 per month, w i t h a 

producing w e l l overhead r a t e of $600 a month, and t h a t i s 

p a r t of our operating agreement presented as E x h i b i t 4 

here. 

Q. You said these costs are i n l i n e w i t h what's 

being charged by other operators i n the area. How do you 

know t h a t ? 

A. Oh, b a s i c a l l y by the j o i n d e r we've received from 

these very s o p h i s t i c a t e d co-owners i n t h i s t r a c t . 

Q. Are you involved i n other producing w e l l s i n the 

area? 

A. We've got several producing w e l l s we have 

i n t e r e s t w i t h i n the area. 

Q. And are these costs i n l i n e w i t h what's being 

charged — 

A. Yes. 

Q. — what was charged, and what i s being charged on 

those wells? 

A. Yes, they are. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Do you recommend t h a t these overhead 

and a d m i n i s t r a t i v e f i g u r e s be incorporated i n t o any order 

t h a t r e s u l t s from t h i s hearing? 

A. Yes, I do. 
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Q. With a COPAS adjustment? 

A. Yes, I do. 

Q. Okay. Why don't you t u r n t o E x h i b i t Number 7 f o r 

me, please? Can you t e l l me what t h a t is? 

A. Those are copies of our o r i g i n a l w e l l proposal. 

The f i r s t one, the September 5th l e t t e r , i s when we 

proposed the Federal "34" Com Number 1 w e l l t o the owners 

i n the east h a l f of Section 34. And t h a t was sent, of 

course, t o a l l p a r t i e s owning an i n t e r e s t i n t h a t acreage. 

And then the September 17th l e t t e r i s when we 

sent out our proposed j o i n t operating agreement covering 

the east h a l f of Section 34 t o the p a r t i e s . 

Q. And was t h a t sent t o A r r i n g t o n as wel l ? 

A. I don't believe i t was. 

Q. The JOA wasn't? 

A. I don't believe i t was, Paul. 

Q. Was the AFE sent t o Arrington? 

A. Yes, i t was. 

Q. Okay. Why don't you summarize the e f f o r t s t h a t 

you engaged i n t o o b t a i n the v o l u n t a r y j o i n d e r of a l l the 

working i n t e r e s t owners? 

A. B a s i c a l l y j u s t , you know, j u s t numerous 

conversations about who would be the -- who would make the 

most sense l o g i c a l l y t o get t h i s w e l l d r i l l e d i n a t i m e l y 

manner t o accommodate everybody's, you know, lease-
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e x p i r a t i o n concerns, who has the engineering on s t a f f 

capable of — you know, of g e t t i n g t h i s w e l l d r i l l e d t o the 

o b j e c t i v e depths, get the w e l l completed and put on l i n e i n 

a t i m e l y manner. 

You know, we don't use a l o t of c o n s u l t i n g - t y p e 

t e c h n i c a l people when we d r i l l our w e l l s ; we t r y t o do them 

mostly w i t h our o n - s t a f f engineering group. 

And those f a c t o r s were considered, as w e l l as 

i n t e r e s t . Great Western and Davoil, or — Davoil I n c . , i s 

a s p i n o f f of Great Western i n t e r e s t s t h a t was spun o f f i n t o 

a separate company i n 1977, but we represent 25-percent 

ownership i n the w e l l , so we had a s i g n i f i c a n t stake 

c o l l e c t i v e l y , going i n , before we s t a r t e d n e g o t i a t i o n s w i t h 

the Yates, e t a l . , group. 

Q. And when d i d you s t a r t those n e g o t i a t i o n s ? 

A. Immediately i n June upon r e c e i v i n g A r r i n g t o n ' s 

w e l l proposal. 

Q. And what were the r e s u l t of those discussions? 

A. We came up w i t h an acceptable j o i n t o p e r a t i n g 

agreement t h a t everybody can l i v e w i t h . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Why don't you summarize any 

discussions you've had w i t h Arrington? Have you had any 

discussions w i t h Arrington? 

A. No, I have not. 

Q. Okay. Have you received anything from A r r i n g t o n 
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besides t h e i r w e l l proposals? 

A. No, not t o my knowledge. 

Q. Did they ever submit a JOA t o you? 

A. No, they d i d not. 

Q. Okay. Does Great Western have any experience 

o p e r a t i n g deep gas w e l l s i n the area? 

A. Great Western has been operating i n New Mexico 

since the e a r l y 1950s, but more r e c e n t l y t h i s southern 

p o r t i o n of t h i s Atoka t r e n d t h a t i s now being extended by 

a l l the new a c t i v i t y . Great Western has got a w e l l c a l l e d 

the Lowe State Number 1 w e l l , about two miles t o the 

southeast of here t h a t was d r i l l e d i n the l a t e 1970s. 

We're k i n d of proud of t h a t w e l l . I t ' s cum'd over 9 BCF of 

gas, and i t ' s s t i l l producing from the Atoka for m a t i o n . 

Our more recent h i s t o r y , not n e c e s s a r i l y as an 

operator, but our more recent h i s t o r y as a major non-

o p e r a t i n g working i n t e r e s t p a r t i c i p a n t , has been i n Section 

5 of 16 South, 34 East, the Harrod State Number 5 w e l l t h a t 

was d r i l l e d , t h a t I believe sets up the Kukui w e l l i n 

Section 6. And of course I t h i n k t h a t ' s the w e l l we're a l l 

keying o f f of f o r our Section 34 w e l l , but Great Western 

d i d own a s i g n i f i c a n t non-operating working i n t e r e s t i n the 

Nadel and Gussman Harrod State Number 5 w e l l i n Section 5. 

Q. Okay. Now, you i n d i c a t e d t h a t t h e r e was a w e l l 

about two miles t o the south t h a t you're p a r t i c u l a r l y proud 
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of. What fonation is that producing froi? 
A. That's producing from t h i s p r o l i f i c Atoka t r e n d . 

Q. And i s t h a t the same t r e n d t h a t you're shooting 

f o r i n t h i s w e ll? 

A. Yes, s i r , i t i s , I bel i e v e i t i s . 

Q. Was t h a t the o r i g i n a l w e l l t h a t discovered these 

sands t h a t i t produced from? 

A. I t was one of the o r i g i n a l w e l l s d r i l l e d i n t h i s 

t r e n d , yes. 

Q. Did Great Western, i n f a c t , d r i l l t h a t w e l l ? 

A. We d r i l l e d and completed i t . 

Q. And have you operated t h a t w e l l since i t was 

d r i l l e d , continuously? 

A. Yes. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . I s E x h i b i t Number 8 an a f f i d a v i t and 

attached l e t t e r s g i v i n g n o t i c e of today's hearing? 

A. Yes. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Does Great Western seek t o be 

designated operator of t h i s proposed well? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Why should Great Western be designated the 

operator, instead of Arrington? 

A. Well, we bel i e v e we've achieved v o l u n t a r y j o i n d e r 

and commitment from 67-plus percent of the working i n t e r e s t 

i n t h i s proposed p r o r a t i o n u n i t . So t h e r e f o r e we b e l i e v e 
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because of those e f f o r t s and because of t h a t support t h a t 

t h a t voice should be named the operator. 

Q. Do you know of any reason why A r r i n g t o n should be 

designated operator instead of Great Western? 

A. I do not. 

Q. Okay. Are you f a m i l i a r w i t h an A p r i l 5 t h , 1995, 

memorandum from David Catanach t o W i l l i a m J. LeMay, then 

D i r e c t o r of the O i l Conservation D i v i s i o n ? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. And i s t h a t memorandum comprised of Great Western 

E x h i b i t Number 9? 

A. Yes, i t i s . 

Q. And does t h a t memorandum pu r p o r t t o set f o r t h 

suggested g u i d e l i n e s t o be u t i l i z e d i n de c i d i n g competing 

f o r c e - p o o l i n g a p p l i c a t i o n s ? 

A. I be l i e v e i t does. 

Q. A l l r i g h t , were E x h i b i t s Number 1 through 9 

prepared by you or compiled under your d i r e c t i o n or 

supervision? 

A. Yes. 

MR. OWEN: Mr. Examiner, I move the admission 

i n t o evidence of E x h i b i t s 1 through 9. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Objection? 

MR. HALL: No o b j e c t i o n . 

EXAMINER BROOKS: 1 through 9 are admitted. 
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MR. OWEN: Pass the witness. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Mr. Hall? 

CROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MR. HALL: 

Q. Mr. Headington, can you t e l l us how many w e l l s 

Great Western has d r i l l e d i n the Lovington area i n the l a s t 

f i v e years? 

A. As an operator? 

Q. Yes. 

A. We've been i n several w e l l s as a non-operator. 

But as an operator i n the l a s t f i v e years, probably — We 

probably have not d r i l l e d one as operator. 

Q. From what I understood from your e a r l i e r 

testimony, the l a s t w e l l you've apparently d r i l l e d i n the 

area was i n the l a t e 1970s. Does t h a t sound r i g h t ? 

A. As an operator, t h a t ' s c o r r e c t . 

Q. Okay. 

A. Excuse me, t h a t i s not c o r r e c t . We d r i l l e d and 

operated t h r e e Morton-Townsend-Wolfcamp w e l l s about t h r e e 

miles n o r t h of here i n 15-34, so we d i d i n the mid- t o l a t e 

1980s, Great Western d i d operate and d r i l l two w e l l s up 

th e r e . 

Q. And you speak i n the past tense. Are you 

operator today of those wells? 

A. We've sold those w e l l s . 
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Q. I see. When is the last time you've done a 

compulsory p o o l i n g case? 

A. We normally always reach v o l u n t a r y agreement. 

Great Western has not done one i n q u i t e some time. 

Q. Okay. Can you t e l l the Hearing Examiner your 

understanding of what the p r a c t i c e i s i n proposing a w e l l 

before you f i l e a compulsory p o o l i n g a p p l i c a t i o n ? What's 

your understanding? 

A. I'm sorr y , could you repeat t h a t , Scott? 

Q. What i s your understanding of the D i v i s i o n ' s 

accepted p r a c t i c e f o r proposing w e l l s p r i o r t o f i l i n g a 

compulsory p o o l i n g a p p l i c a t i o n ? Do you know? 

A. I'm not sure I've been — I understand you have 

t o propose a w e l l a t the time your a p p l i c a t i o n i s made, 

yes. 

Q. Do you know how f a r i n advance you're supposed t o 

propose your well? 

A. I do not. 

Q. We don't have a dispute here, do we, t h a t Great 

Western f a i l e d t o propose t h e i r w e l l i n t h i s case before 

f i l i n g t h e i r compulsory p o o l i n g A p p l i c a t i o n ? There's no 

dispute about t h a t , I don't believe? 

A. I be l i e v e they were done simultaneously. 

Q. Could you t e l l us what i s Great Western's i n -

house p r o t o c o l f o r g e t t i n g a w e l l d r i l l e d , from proposal t o 
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d r i l l i n g ? What steps do you take in-house? 

A. Anytime there's new a c t i v i t y i n an area where we 

have i n t e r e s t , we're always updating our g e o l o g i c a l 

i n f o r m a t i o n , a c q u i r i n g p e r t i n e n t seismic data, reviewing 

a p p r o p r i a t e land records t o determine proper ownership, and 

then, you know, deciding whether or not we want t o go 

forward w i t h a w e l l proposal. 

Q. I guess i t ' s been some time since Great Western 

took those steps f o r a w e l l i n the Lovington area anyway; 

i s t h a t safe t o say? 

A. Well, we p a r t i c i p a t e d i n two w e l l s i n Section 5 

w i t h i n a mi l e of here, w i t h i n the l a s t couple of years. 

Q. But not as operator? 

A. Not as operator. 

Q. And as I understood your e a r l i e r testimony f o r 

t h i s w e l l , Great Western d i d not develop the geology; you 

r e l i e d on the Yates geology. That's what piqued your 

i n t e r e s t ? 

A. No, t h a t ' s not c o r r e c t , Scott. We had our own 

3-D seismic i n f o r m a t i o n i n t h i s area, we have worked t h a t 

— the i n f o r m a t i o n , and we — you know, we have our own 

maps and seismic i n t h i s area. 

Q. But i s n ' t i t accurate t o say t h a t Great Western 

was not going t o develop t h i s acreage before Yates came 

along and requested a farmout from you? 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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A. That's not accurate, no. 

Q. I f I understood your e a r l i e r testimony, i t wasn't 

u n t i l a f t e r A r r i n g t o n ' s w e l l proposal was submitted t o you 

t h a t Great Western r e a l l y got so serious about t h i s 

acreage; i s t h a t f a i r t o say? 

A. No, no, i t ' s not. We s t a r t e d g e t t i n g serious 

long before t h a t , when Yates t r i e d t o buy our i n t e r e s t i n 

here. 

Q. Oh, a l l r i g h t , so i t was when Yates came around 

f o r a farmout? 

A. Yes, which was seven, e i g h t months, nine months 

before the a c t u a l w e l l proposal by A r r i n g t o n . 

Q. Let's t a l k about your E x h i b i t s 2 and 3 b r i e f l y , 

Mr. Headington. E x h i b i t 3 was Arr i n g t o n ' s E x h i b i t Number 2 

i n the p r i o r hearing, and I understand you t o say t h a t 

there's some d i f f e r e n c e about the percentage r e f l e c t e d f o r 

David Petroleum, McMillan Permian, McMillan Ventures, 

Michael McMillan, Edward David, McKamey, t h a t group? 

A. I be l i e v e they're a l l d i f f e r e n t , yes. 

Q. Yeah. And t h a t i s pursuant t o a p r i v a t e 

agreement among them? 

A. That i s pursuant t o a non- — an agreement t h a t ' s 

not of record. I t ' s an e x p l o r a t i o n agreement t h a t has an 

AMI attached t o i t t h a t determines the i n t e r e s t of t h e i r 

ownership i n t h i s area, yes. 
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Q. And you say i t ' s not of record? 

A. I don't b e l i e v e i t ' s of record. You have t o t a l k 

t o those f o l k s t o get t h a t i n f o r m a t i o n . 

Q. But the gross percentages otherwise evident of 

record, as r e f l e c t e d on your E x h i b i t 3, are c o r r e c t , are 

they not, based on evidence of record? 

A. I haven't compared t h a t , Scott — 

Q. Okay. 

A. — and I — They may be. 

Q. Did you have a landman or an a b s t r a c t o r do a 

t a k e o f f f o r you t o t r y t o run t h a t down? 

A. Yes, I have. I j u s t — I haven't looked a t t h a t , 

I haven't compared t h a t — our t a k e o f f i n f o r m a t i o n w i t h our 

e x h i b i t . 

Q. You say you have almost 68 percent t h a t ' s 

v o l u n t a r i l y committed t o you now under your JOA. Did any 

of the Yates companies receive any a d d i t i o n a l c o n s i d e r a t i o n 

o u t s i d e of the operating agreement f o r t h e i r j o i n d e r i n 

your w e l l ? 

A. No, they d i d not. 

Q. How about any of the other i n t e r e s t owners, the 

Owens, the — 

A. No. 

Q. Now, l e t ' s t u r n t o your E x h i b i t 5, Great 

Western's AFE, and also i f you take before you E x h i b i t 6, 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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c o r r e c t me i f I'm wrong, but I thought I heard you say t h a t 

the A r r i n g t o n AFE t o t a l w e l l cost was $1.6 m i l l i o n ? 

A. I probably need my reading glasses. I t may be 

1.5. 

Q. Okay, j u s t need t o c l e a r t h a t up f o r the record. 

So r e a l l y , we're not too f a r apart on our t o t a l w e l l costs 

here? 

A. The estimated t o t a l w e l l costs are very s i m i l a r . 

Q. Let's t a l k about what else you must do before you 

d r i l l a w e l l . Have you done any of your r e g u l a t o r y or 

p e r m i t t i n g work outside of t h i s compulsory p o o l i n g 

proceeding? 

A. We have c a l l e d about h i s approved BLM permit t h a t 

he does have f o r h i s w e l l proposal, we have c a l l e d i n t o 

f i n d out because we do r e a l i z e , we do respect — he has a 

date coming up on h i s assignment of i n t e r e s t i n t h i s t r a c t . 

We c e r t a i n l y i n t e n d t o — I f our A p p l i c a t i o n i s approved, 

we c e r t a i n l y i n t e n d t o meet t h a t date. 

And we have c a l l e d BLM and they t e l l us t h e r e 

w i l l not have t o be a new arch, survey done, i t ' s simply a 

matter of sundry n o t i c e t o get t h a t t r a n s f e r r e d , should we 

be allowed t o do t h a t . 

Q. So Great Western d i d not undertake t o o b t a i n an 

a r c h a e o l o g i c a l survey, d i d they? 

A. We d i d not. 
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Q. Okay. Has Great Western reached an agreement f o r 

surface damages w i t h the surface owner or occupant out 

there? 

A. Not y e t , no. 

Q. Have you even t a l k e d t o the surface owner? 

A. No. 

Q. What i s the surface ownership, i f you know? 

A. We have not checked t h a t . 

Q. T e l l me what communications Great Western has had 

w i t h A r r i n g t o n about the development of t h i s acreage i n 

Section 34? 

A. I haven't received anything, other than t h e i r 

w e l l proposal, from them. And as f a r as I know, I have not 

had any communication w i t h them. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . So Great Western took no steps t o t r y 

t o communicate w i t h A r r i n g t o n ; i s t h a t accurate t o say? 

A. And vice-versa. 

Q. Well, the answer t o the question i s yes? 

A. Yes. 

Q. So they got the f i r s t w e l l proposal out, and 

there's simply no response t o t h a t from Great Western? 

That's a f a c t we can agree on. 

A. (Nods) 

Q. You need t o i n d i c a t e f o r the record. 

A. Yes. 
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Q. What's wrong w i t h A r r i n g t o n ' s proposal? 

A. B a s i c a l l y , we j u s t f e e l l i k e we would do a b e t t e r 

j o b of operating a w e l l i n t h i s area. We've been a t i t a 

l o t longer than Mr. A r r i n g t o n has, even though we haven't 

d r i l l e d the recent w e l l s t h a t he has i n t h i s area. And 

we've had some very r e a l concerns i n the past w i t h w e l l s 

we've been i n w i t h him. 

Q. Any of these w e l l s i n southeastern New Mexico? 

A. No, they're not. 

Q. Was i t an operating concern? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Or was i t a cost concern? 

A. Both. 

Q. There's no disagreement about the w e l l l o c a t i o n 

here, i s there? 

A. No. 

Q. And there's no disagreement about the geology? 

A. No s i g n i f i c a n t disagreement, no. 

Q. And we're reasonably close on estimated costs 

under the AFEs? 

A. Right. 

Q. Some $30,000 d i f f e r e n c e — 

A. Yeah. 

Q. — give or take? 

So the reasons you don't want A r r i n g t o n t o 
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operate have t o do w i t h a dispute somewhere e l s e . I s t h a t 

i n Texas? 

A. That's where our experience has been w i t h him 

ope r a t i n g , yes. 

Q. Any other reasons? 

A. No. 

Q. And wouldn't you agree w i t h me t h a t A r r i n g t o n has 

s i g n i f i c a n t l y , s i g n i f i c a n t l y , much more experience than 

Great Western i n d r i l l i n g t o the Atoka-Morrow i n 

southeastern New Mexico? 

A. Not necessarily. 

Q. Not nec e s s a r i l y , but you w i l l agree t h a t he has 

s i g n i f i c a n t l y more? 

A. He has some recent experience, yeah, Scott. 

MR. HALL: I have nothing f u r t h e r , Mr. Examiner. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Redirect, Mr. Owen? 

MR. HALL: Sure. 

REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. OWEN: 

Q. Mr. Headington, Mr. H a l l seemed p a r t i c u l a r l y 

i n t e r e s t e d i n your disagreement w i t h A r r i n g t o n . What was 

t h a t disagreement? 

A. We were an i n t e r e s t owner i n a pr o p e r t y i n Texas 

f o r — since about 1950 we've been i n these p r o p e r t i e s , and 

he acquired the operator's i n t e r e s t and went out t o d r i l l 
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some additional wells. And we had trouble getting backup 

i n f o r m a t i o n provided on the j o i n t - i n t e r e s t b i l l i n g s t h a t 

were received. We would request backup i n f o r m a t i o n f o r the 

b i l l s and b a s i c a l l y never received any backup i n f o r m a t i o n , 

any s i g n i f i c a n t i n f o r m a t i o n t o s a t i s f y some of our 

questions. And i t j u s t k i n d of escalated from t h e r e t o , 

you know, an even more — a l a r g e r disagreement. 

Q. Did you have an independent a u d i t o r review t h a t 

information? 

A. Yes, we d i d , we were forced t o — Because we 

could not receive backup i n f o r m a t i o n , we were fo r c e d t o 

a u d i t — attempt t o a u d i t the j o i n t account, and we d i d 

have an a u d i t done on those w e l l s . 

Q. Did t h a t a u d i t o r generate a report? 

A. Yes, he d i d . 

Q. Did t h a t a u d i t o r reach conclusions about 

A r r i n g t o n ' s p r a c t i c e s as operator of these wells? 

A. Yes, he d i d . 

Q. What were those conclusions? 

A. There were numerous exceptions t o the b i l l i n g s — 

Q. What does t h a t mean? 

A. — t h a t were noted by the a u d i t . 

Q. What does t h a t mean? 

A. That means something t h a t backup was not provided 

f o r on a b i l l t h a t went t o the j o i n t account. 
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Q. Did the a u d i t o r i n d i c a t e t h a t A r r i n g t o n had done 

anything wrong i n i t s operations? 

A. He j u s t — An a u d i t notes exceptions, Paul. 

Those exceptions u s u a l l y are s a t i s f i e d by the operator, 

they u s u a l l y provide the exception i n f o r m a t i o n . And again, 

I'm not e x a c t l y sure how much of t h a t was ever s a t i s f i e d . 

We d i d end up i n l i t i g a t i o n over those w e l l s . 

Q. We d i d . What was the conclusion of t h a t ? 

A. There was a settlement reached i n mediation. 

Q. What was t h a t settlement? 

A. We received c o n s i d e r a t i o n . 

Q. A r r i n g t o n paid you? 

A. Paid us. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . How long has Great Western operated 

Atoka-Morrow w e l l s i n t h i s immediate area? 

A. I n t h i s immediate area, we've been an operator, 

l i k e I s a i d , of a very nice w e l l t h a t we r e a l l y thought was 

r e a l l y a good s t a t e w e l l , since 1976. 

Q. 1976. How long has A r r i n g t o n been an operator of 

Atoka-Morrow w e l l s i n t h i s area? 

A. I b e l i e v e t h e i r testimony was since 1990, or 

around t h e r e . 

Q. Okay. Are you f a m i l i a r w i t h any D i v i s i o n r u l e 

which r e q u i r e s a w e l l proposal i n a competing f o r c e p o o l i n g 

a p p l i c a t i o n t o be submitted before an a p p l i c a t i o n f o r 
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compulsory p o o l i n g i s f i l e d ? 

A. I'm so r r y , Paul, could you repeat t h a t ? 

Q. That was — I confused myself. Sorry about t h a t . 

Are you aware of any d i v i s i o n r u l e or r e g u l a t i o n 

which s t a t e s a p r e r e q u i s i t e t o f i l i n g a compulsory p o o l i n g 

a p p l i c a t i o n i s proposing a well? 

A. No, no, I'm not. 

Q. Okay. Now, you said t h a t Great Western took no 

steps t o communicate w i t h A r r i n g t o n ; am I s t a t i n g t h a t 

c o r r e c t l y ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. Well, you d i d send a w e l l proposal, though, 

d i d n ' t you? 

A. They d i d get a w e l l proposal, yes. 

Q. Okay, so you d i d send some communications t o 

Arrington? 

A. Yes, we d i d . We sent an AFE. How many 

communications have you received from Arrington? 

A. One l e t t e r w i t h an AFE from them al s o . 

Q. You've sent one l e t t e r and you've received one 

l e t t e r ? 

A. Yes. 

MR. OWEN: Okay. That's a l l I have. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Do you have f u r t h e r questions, 

Mr. Hall? 
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MR. HALL: Yes, j u s t b r i e f l y , Mr. Examiner. 

RECROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MR. HALL: 

Q. Mr. Headington, do you suppose i t ' s the p r i o r 

disagreement over w e l l costs i n your Texas w e l l t h a t 

created t h i s atmosphere t h a t A r r i n g t o n and Great Western 

aren't communicating very well? 

A. I suppose i t i s . 

Q. Do you wish the Hearing Examiner here t o consider 

t h i s previous disagreement over w e l l costs as a f a c t o r i n 

t h i s compulsory poo l i n g proceeding? 

A. Not i f i t ' s w i t h i n t h e i r g u i d e l i n e s . I mean, 

depending on the g u i d e l i n e s t h a t they want t o use. We're 

not suggesting t h a t , no. 

Q. Okay. Well, l e t ' s look a t E x h i b i t Number 9, Mr. 

Catanach's memorandum from 1995. Do you have t h a t there? 

E x h i b i t Number 9, I believe from your e a r l i e r testimony, 

o u t l i n e s r e l e v a n t and i r r e l e v a n t testimony t o be considered 

i n compulsory p o o l i n g hearings. 

Under the heading of " I r r e l e v a n t and Unnecessary 

Evidence", l e t ' s look down t o subsection e ) , i f you'd j u s t 

read t h a t i n t o the record, please, s i r . 

A. "Incidence and d e s c r i p t i o n of previous 

disagreements between the p a r t i e s . " 

MR. HALL: That's a l l I have, Mr. Examiner. 
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EXAMINER BROOKS: Anything f u r t h e r , Mr. Owen? 

MR. OWEN: Nothing f u r t h e r , Mr. Examiner. 

EXAMINATION 

BY EXAMINER BROOKS: 

Q. Well, a t the r i s k of prolonging something t h a t ' s 

i r r e l e v a n t . . . 

Anyway, when Mr. H a l l was examining you, he asked 

you i f your questions had t o do w i t h o p e r a t i o n a l matters or 

b i l l i n g , and according t o my notes you sa i d both. And as I 

understood, t h i s i s mostly an accounting d i s p u t e on the 

previous i n c i d e n t s . Did you run across anything t h a t 

caused you t o bel i e v e t h a t A r r i n g t o n was not capable of 

operating? 

A. There were some o p e r a t i o n a l issues as p a r t of the 

disagreement we had. 

Q. Do you remember what those were? 

A. Cost overruns. 

Q. Anything else? 

A. No, s i r . 

Q. What magnitude of cost overruns are you t a l k i n g 

about? 

A. A hundred percent over the AFE. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: I t h i n k t h a t ' s a l l I have from 

t h i s witness. 

Do you have anything, Mr. Catanach? 
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EXAMINER CATANACH: Just a couple. 

EXAMINATION 

BY EXAMINER CATANACH: 

Q. Do you remember — Do you r e c a l l the date t h a t 

Yates approached you t o acquire your i n t e r e s t i n t h i s area? 

A. I ' d have t o go back t o the correspondence f i l e , 

but I b e l i e v e i t was l a t e 2001 or e a r l y — They approached 

us several times, Mr. Catanach. I bel i e v e i t s t a r t e d i n 

2001 and continued i n t o the f i r s t p a r t of t h i s year. 

Q. And do you know at what p o i n t i n time A r r i n g t o n 

acquired h i s i n t e r e s t i n t h i s spacing u n i t ? 

A. I understand r i g h t a t the f i r s t of 2 001, I 

b e l i e v e . 

Q. So i t was p r i o r t o the time t h a t Yates approached 

you t h a t A r r i n g t o n had h i s i n t e r e s t , A r r i n g t o n acquired h i s 

i n t e r e s t ? 

A. Have t o look a t t h a t . I understood t h a t 

A r r i n g t o n received a c t u a l conveyance from some of the 

people they acquired t i t l e from a t the f i r s t of t h i s year. 

Q. F i r s t of 2002? 

A. 2002, yes, s i r . 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Okay. 

MR. OWEN: Mr. Examiner, I'm not sure e x a c t l y 

when i t was, but I know i t ' s c l e a r l y s t a t e d i n the 

t r a n s c r i p t i n the previous hearing. 
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EXAMINER CATANACH: Yeah, I j u s t don't r e c a l l 

when i t was, the previous hearing. 

MR. OWEN: And we're not t r y i n g t o c o n t r a d i c t 

t h a t testimony from Mr. Arrin g t o n ' s witnesses. 

Q. (By Examiner Catanach) I n o t i c e t h a t you have — 

i n our proposal of September 5th and your subsequent l e t t e r 

of September 17th, you have been able t o secure v o l u n t a r y 

agreement w i t h a l l the i n t e r e s t owners i n a f a i r l y r a p i d 

f a s h i o n . Have you t a l k e d t o any of these i n t e r e s t owners, 

and have they expressed t o you why they p r e f e r Great 

Western d r i l l and operate t h i s w e l l instead of Arrington? 

A. Not d i r e c t l y , no, I have not. That di s c u s s i o n 

has not come up d i r e c t l y . 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Okay, t h a t ' s a l l I have. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Mr. Jones? 

Okay, you may step down. 

You may c a l l your next witness, Mr. Owen. 

MR. OWEN: Thank you, Mr. Examiner. C a l l Mr. 

Russell Richards. 

RUSSELL P. RICHARDS, 

the witness h e r e i n , a f t e r having been f i r s t d u l y sworn upon 

h i s oath, was examined and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. OWEN: 

Q. Would you please t e l l us your f u l l name and where 
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you l i v e ? 

A. Russell Paul Richards, Midland, Texas. 

Q. Who do you work for? 

A. Great Western D r i l l i n g Company. 

Q. What do you do f o r Great Western? 

A. I'm t h e i r e x p l o r a t i o n manager. 

Q. Have you p r e v i o u s l y t e s t i f i e d before t h i s 

D i v i s i o n or one of i t s Examiners and had your c r e d e n t i a l s 

as a petroleum g e o l o g i s t accepted and made a matter of 

record? 

A. Yes, I have. 

Q. Are you f a m i l i a r w i t h the A p p l i c a t i o n f i l e d i n 

t h i s case? 

A. Yes, I am. 

Q. Have you made a t e c h n i c a l study of the area which 

i s the subject of t h i s A p p l i c a t i o n ? 

A. Yes, I have. 

Q. Are you prepared t o share the r e s u l t s of your 

study w i t h the Examiner? 

A. Yes, I am. 

MR. OWEN: Mr. Examiner, I tender the witness as 

an expert i n petroleum geology. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Any objection? 

MR. HALL: No o b j e c t i o n . 

EXAMINER BROOKS: So q u a l i f i e d . 
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Q. (By Mr. Owen) Have you prepared e x h i b i t s f o r 

pr e s e n t a t i o n i n t h i s case? 

A. Yes, I have. 

Q. Are you prepared t o make a recommendation t o the 

Examiner as t o the r i s k penalty t h a t should be assessed 

against the nonconsenting working i n t e r e s t owners? 

A. Yes, I am. 

Q. What 1s t h a t recommendation? 

A. And w i l l you ex p l a i n the basis f o r t h a t 

recommendation here i n a minute? 

A. Yes, I w i l l . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Why don't you i d e n t i f y and review 

Great Western E x h i b i t Number 10 f o r the Examiner? 

A. E x h i b i t 10 i s a s t r u c t u r e map on the top of the 

Morrow lime, which i s a r e g i o n a l l y c o r r e l a t a b l e event. The 

l o c a t i o n i s i n d i c a t e d i n red of the proposed Federal "34" 

Com Number 1 w e l l . Just k i n d of a matter of what c o l o r -

coding the producing w e l l formations are i n d i c a t e d , blue i s 

the Atoka-Townsend zone, and the green i s a Morrow 

producer. 

Also i n d i c a t e d , as i n other e x h i b i t s , t he east-

h a l f p r o r a t i o n u n i t i s i n d i c a t e d i n green and Great 

Western's acreage i s i n d i c a t e d i n yellow. 

The s i g n i f i c a n c e t o the s p e c i f i c l o c a t i o n of 

s t r u c t u r e i s t h a t t h i s l o c a t i o n w i l l be located — I t ' s on 
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an o v e r a l l subregional north-south-trending r i d g e . The 

s p e c i f i c l o c a t i o n proposed i s i n a saddle along t h a t r i d g e . 

The high p o i n t s along t h a t r i d g e are encountered by the 

Kukui w e l l t o the south, i n the northeast of Section 6, and 

the w e l l i n the southeast of Section 2 6 i s the Nearburg 

Grasslands w e l l , which I ' l l t a l k about more. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Well, l e t ' s t u r n t o E x h i b i t Number 

11, then, your isopach. Can you e x p l a i n t h a t f o r the 

Examiner? 

A. Yes, t h i s i s an isopach of one of the two primary 

o b j e c t i v e s . I t ' s the Atoka-Townsend sand. We f e e l l i k e 

the s i g n i f i c a n c e of the i n t e r p r e t a t i o n of t h i s l o c a t i o n i s 

set up by the recent completion of the Kukui Degas w e l l i n 

the northeast of Section 6, which was an extension of the 

Townsend-Morrow t r e n d . 

The next nearest w e l l along t h i s channel, the way 

I i n t e r p r e t i t , i s the Nadel and Gussman Harrod 5 State 

w e l l i n the extreme southwest of Section 5, which Great 

Western was a p a r t i c i p a n t i n . 

And o f f the edge — Put the edge of the map 

somewhere, but a d d i t i o n a l l y , o f f the edge of the map the r e 

are a d d i t i o n a l producing w e l l s t h a t are a c t u a l l y o l d e r and 

w i t h higher cums along t h i s same t r e n d . 

I've also i n d i c a t e d date of f i r s t p r o d u c t i o n by 

each of the producing w e l l s , as w e l l as cumulative 
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p r o d u c t i o n and c u r r e n t d a i l y r a t e s . 

Q. Does Great Western have any experience d r i l l i n g 

and o p erating an Atoka sand or an Atoka-Morrow w e l l i n t h i s 

immediate area? 

A. Yes, as i n d i c a t e d by p r i o r testimony, Great 

Western d r i l l e d one of the o r i g i n a l w e l l s t h a t s t a r t e d 

development i n the Townsend-Morrow Pool. I should enter 

f o r the record, i t ' s i d e n t i f i e d by the Commission as the 

Townsend-Morrow f i e l d . But i n f a c t , i t ' s my c o n t e n t i o n , 

and I t h i n k i t ' s accepted p r e t t y industrywide t h a t t h a t ' s 

a c t u a l l y an Atoka-age sand. I t ' s a matter of semantics, 

but j u s t k i n d of f o r the record. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . 

A. And yes, t h a t we — On t h a t w e l l we d r i l l e d , 

recompleted a w e l l t o the Morrow up i n the Morton f i e l d , 

and also I don't want t o — 

Q. How f a r away i s the Morton f i e l d ? 

A. I t ' s three miles northeast, j u s t o f f the edge of 

t h i s map. 

Q. Okay, and I i n t e r r u p t e d you, you were about t o 

say — 

A. Well, I j u s t — I don't want t o discount the 

s i g n i f i c a n c e of being a s i g n i f i c a n t non-operator. We 

p a r t i c i p a t e d w i t h Amerind i n t h e i r Medlin State w e l l , which 

was a t e s t t o extend the Townsend t r e n d . That's the w e l l 
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t h a t ' s i n d i c a t e d i n the eastern p o r t i o n of Section 5 t h a t 

a c t u a l l y d i d not encounter Townsend sand, which we 

subsequently made a w e l l i n the Cisco carbonate. 

And then we p a r t i c i p a t e d and were key i n causing 

t h i s Harrod 5 w e l l , t h a t Nadel and Gussman operated, t o be 

d r i l l e d . 

Q. Okay. 

A. Also i n d i c a t e d on the cross-section — excuse me, 

on E x h i b i t 11, i s a l i n e of s e c t i o n t h a t i s my next 

e x h i b i t . 

Q. Well, l e t ' s t a l k about t h a t next e x h i b i t then. 

Why don't you review t h a t f o r the Examiner? 

A. E x h i b i t 12 i s a s t r u c t u r a l c r o s s - s e c t i o n , n o r t h -

south cross-section t h a t brackets the two nearest w e l l s on 

t r e n d , i f you w i l l , t o the proposed l o c a t i o n . The w e l l t o 

the south, as I i n d i c a t e d before, i s the Kukui Degas "6" 

State Com Number 1, which i s a very recent w e l l , completed 

i n J u l y of t h i s year i n the Townsend sand. 

This w e l l also — Let me j u s t f i n i s h t a l k i n g 

about my f i r s t primary o b j e c t i v e , and then we can t a l k 

about the Morrow- — 

Q. Okay. 

A. — -Strawn. 

The second w e l l , or the northernmost w e l l on the 

r i g h t - h a n d side of the cross-section i s the Nearburg 
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Production Grasslands "27" w e l l . This w e l l I've 

i n d i c a t e d — you know, put a couple of question marks there 

on my c o r r e l a t i o n . This w e l l has r e a l l y been a question 

mark i n my mind f o r a long time as t o whether i t r e a l l y 

extends t h i s t r e n d t o the n o r t h . I want t o b e l i e v e t h a t 

t h a t ' s — I t i s s t r a t i g r a p h i c a l l y e quivalent t o sand. I s 

i t t r u l y — You know, does t h i s set up the trend? I t h i n k 

t h a t ' s one of the s i g n i f i c a n t r i s k f a c t o r s t h a t we can 

discuss more. 

There's a washout across t h a t zone t h a t a f f e c t s 

l o g q u a l i t y , but I also can't help but t h i n k t h a t maybe 

i t ' s t i g h t , no p o r o s i t y or p e r m e a b i l i t y . I t h i n k Nearburg 

— I t would have been something t h a t would have been 

t e s t e d . 

Q. Okay, and you were going t o t a l k about the 

Morrow? 

A. Yes, our second primary o b j e c t i v e i s the Morrow 

e l a s t i c s i n t e r v a l , which are sands deposited on the 

e r o s i o n a l surface of the Mi s s i s s i p p i a n - A u s t i n . I've 

i n d i c a t e d on the cross-section there — Mesa i s k i n d of a 

l o c a l terminology; I t h i n k i t was o r i g i n a l l y coined by 

Yates f o r these sands. But the play concept i n the Morrow 

i s t h a t these sands were p r e f e r e n t i a l l y deposited 

o f f s t r u c t u r e i n M i s s i s s i p p i a n e r o s i o n a l lows. 

I w i l l admit there's some i n t e r p r e t a t i o n , 
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geologic l i c e n s e , i f you w i l l , and, you know, the p o t e n t i a l 

f o r a d d i t i o n a l sand d e p o s i t i o n a t our proposed l o c a t i o n , 

but t h a t ' s going t o be the key t o making t h i s work. You 

know, the r i s k t here i s t h a t we don't know i f we are i n 

r e s e r v o i r communication w i t h the Degas w e l l . We don't know 

i f those are gas-bearing sands th e r e , based on pro d u c t i o n 

t e s t s — there are i n d i c a t i o n s logwise t h a t they are — but 

Kukui chose t o not complete i n those i n t e r v a l s p r i o r t o 

completion i n the Townsend sand. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Do you t h i n k there's a chance t h a t 

you could d r i l l a w e l l a t t h i s proposed l o c a t i o n t h a t would 

not be a commercial success? 

A. That's a tough question f o r a g e o l o g i s t , but — 

and I must say, i n my 20 years of experience I've never 

i n t e n t i o n a l l y set out t o d r i l l a dry hole. But 

u n f o r t u n a t e l y , i n most a l l s i t u a t i o n s , e s p e c i a l l y here, 

t h a t ' s a s i g n i f i c a n t r i s k . 

Q. Why? 

A. Well, the — j u s t t o s p e c i f i c a l l y address i t t o 

these two primary o b j e c t i v e s , I t h i n k there's r i s k . And i n 

f a c t , are we i n t e r p r e t i n g c o r r e c t l y , Mr. Baker and myself, 

t h a t the sands extend northward from the Kukui w e l l , and 

are they of r e s e r v o i r q u a l i t y ? We know t h a t we're going t o 

be s t r u c t u r a l l y low t o t h a t w e l l . I'm comfortable w i t h — 

I'm comfortable t h a t w i t h d r i l l i n g , even though we are, but 
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t h a t s t i l l t h ere i s r i s k r e l a t e d t o being i n t h a t p o s i t i o n 

due t o p o s s i b l e water-bearing sands. 

Q. Okay. 

A. And i n the Morrow, the same basic r i s k . You 

know, e i t h e r no sand developed, s i m i l a r t o the Nearburg 

w e l l , or they are wet — formation water bearing has been 

i n d i c a t e d by some of the other w e l l s t o the n o r t h t h a t 

Yates have d r i l l e d — or t h a t they're t i g h t . So 

s i g n i f i c a n t r i s k s e x i s t , yes, w i t h d r i l l i n g t h i s . 

Q. Now, you've mentioned Mr. Baker's testimony 

several times. Does Great Western seek t o d r i l l t o a 

d i f f e r e n t formation or horizon than t h a t proposed by 

Arrington? 

A. No, we do not. 

Q. And I assume, since you've r e f e r r e d t o i t several 

times, t h a t you're aware t h a t Mr. B i l l Baker o f f e r e d 

petroleum geology testimony and e x h i b i t s a t the September 

5th, 2002, hearing? 

A. Yes, I am. 

Q. Have you conducted independent petroleum geology 

i n v e s t i g a t i o n i n t h i s are t o determine a prospect? 

A. Yes, I have. 

Q. Have you j u s t piggy-backed on the back of 

A r r i n g t o n ' s e f f o r t s i n t h i s matter? 

A. Not a t a l l , Mr. Owen, I've — Great Western's 
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experience goes back, you know, as i n d i c a t e d before, t o the 

1970s. My personal experience, I've worked or evaluated 

the area or areas adjacent t o t h i s back t o l a t e 1999. 

I n f a c t , I would submit t h a t I was the author of 

a f i e l d study done on the Townsend Morrow Pool t h a t was 

published i n 1999 i n the Roswell Geological Society 

p u b l i c a t i o n , t h a t a c t u a l l y includes data on the w e l l s there 

k i n d of i n the south h a l f of my E x h i b i t s 10 and 11. 

Q. When d i d you s t a r t considering t h i s s p e c i f i c 

prospect f o r d r i l l i n g ? 

A. Well, I t h i n k i t was e a r l y — l a t e l a s t year, the 

— Mr. Headington had i n d i c a t e d o f f e r s t h a t we had had, but 

more so we had been — i t was — a l o t of i t was concurrent 

w i t h m o n i t o r i n g of w e l l a c t i v i t y , p r i m a r i l y t o the n o r t h . 

I t h i n k , though, what obviously sets i t up i n the 

— the immediate o f f s e t w e l l was j u s t d r i l l e d i n June of 

t h i s year, so I t h i n k t h a t moved everybody's urgency or 

f e e l i n g of urgency about t h i s p o t e n t i a l l o c a t i o n up a l o t . 

Q. When was t h a t w e l l completed? 

A. J u l y of t h i s year. 

Q. I s t h a t the w e l l i n d i c a t e d on E x h i b i t Number 11 

i n the northeast quarter of Section 6? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. What's the i n i t i a l production on t h a t w e l l ? 

A. This i s v e r b a l communication from g e o l o g i s t s 
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i n v o l v e d i n the w e l l . I t was a m i l l i o n cubic f e e t per day 

p l u s 4 0 b a r r e l s of condensate, and t h a t was w i t h no 

s t i m u l a t i o n . And t h a t was a t e s t , s h o r t - p e r i o d t e s t . I do 

not have any i n f o r m a t i o n t o i n d i c a t e t h a t t h a t w e l l has 

been put on production as of y e t . 

Q. Okay. How does your i n t e r p r e t a t i o n — Just very 

b r i e f l y , how does your i n t e r p r e t a t i o n of the geology i n 

t h i s area d i f f e r from t h a t of Mr. Baker? 

A. Well, you know, we connect up the sand trends a 

l i t t l e d i f f e r e n t l y , but t h a t ' s a p r e t t y s u b j e c t i v e 

i n t e r p r e t a t i o n . I t h i n k the only t h i n g of s i g n i f i c a n c e on 

our s t r u c t u r a l i n t e r p r e t a t i o n s i s t h a t Mr. Baker i n d i c a t e s 

a north-south t r e n d i n g down t o the west f a u l t t h a t comes 

through the proposed l o c a t i o n and near the two n o r t h -

south — near the n o r t h o f f s e t t i n g and the south o f f s e t t i n g 

w e l l s . And based on the w e l l c o n t r o l , I do not see 

j u s t i f i c a t i o n f o r t h a t . 

Q. Are you aware t h a t Mr. Baker recommended t h a t a 

2 00-percent r i s k penalty be awarded against the 

nonconsenting i n t e r e s t owners i f A r r i n g t o n ' s A p p l i c a t i o n 

f o r compulsory pool i n g i s granted? 

A. Yes, I am. 

Q. Do you agree w i t h Mr. Baker t h a t a 2 00-percent 

pe n a l t y should be awarded? 

A. Yes, I do. 
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Q. I n your opinion, w i l l the g r a n t i n g of Great 

Western's A p p l i c a t i o n i n t h i s case be i n the best i n t e r e s t s 

of conservation or prevention of waste and the p r o t e c t i o n 

of c o r r e l a t i v e r i g h t s ? 

A. Yes, I do. 

Q. Were Great Western E x h i b i t s 10 through 12 

prepared by you or compiled under your d i r e c t i o n ? 

A. Yes, they were. 

MR. OWEN: Mr. Examiner, I move the admission 

i n t o evidence of E x h i b i t s 10 through 10. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: O b j e c t i o n ? 

MR. HALL: No o b j e c t i o n . 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Ten through 12 are admitted. 

Pass the witness? 

MR. OWEN: I pass the witness, Mr. Examiner. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Mr. H a l l . 

CRO S S-EXAMINATION 

BY MR. HALL: 

Q. Again, Mr. Richards, Great Western has no recent 

experience d r i l l i n g Atoka or Morrow w e l l s i n the area, do 

they? 

A. I f your d e f i n i t i o n i s the l a s t f i v e years, no. 

Q. I t h i n k i n p r i o r testimony today, Mr. Headington 

was — the example Great Western i s most proud of i s the 

Lowe w e l l , which as I understand was d r i l l e d t o south i n 
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the l a t e 1970s, correct? 

A. Yeah, I t h i n k the a c t u a l date was 1972. 

Q. Okay. You don't look too o l d . I assume you were 

not w i t h Great Western a t t h a t time, weren't working w i t h 

them i n any way? 

A. No, i n f a c t , I was probably i n j u n i o r h i gh a t 

t h a t time. 

Q. Do you know i f any of the people who c o n t r i b u t e d 

t o the d r i l l i n g of t h a t w e l l , in-house a t Great Western 

time, engineering, g e o l o g i s t s , are they s t i l l employed by 

Great Western? 

A. No, they're not. 

Q. G e o l o g i c a l l y , then, there i s no d i s p u t e between 

A r r i n g t o n and Great Western on the w e l l l o c a t i o n ? 

A. No, there's not. 

Q. Did you u t i l i z e any 3-D seismic data t o confirm 

the w e l l l o c a t i o n ? 

A. I'm not presenting any 3-D data as evidence i n 

t h i s matter. 

Q. My question i s , d i d you u t i l i z e any 3-D data? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And d i d t h a t 3-D data confirm A r r i n g t o n ' s 

l o c a t i o n ? 

A. The 3-D i n t e r p r e t a t i o n was i n agreement w i t h 

t h a t . 
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MR. HALL: I have nothing f u r t h e r , Mr. Examiner. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Anything f u r t h e r ? 

MR. OWEN: Nothing f u r t h e r , Mr. Examiner. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay, I have nothing f u r t h e r . 

Mr. Catanach, Mr. Jones? 

MR. JONES: I have one question. 

EXAMINATION 

BY MR. JONES: 

Q. Mr. Richards, d i d you hear the testimony, the 

previous testimony i n the case t h a t A r r i n g t o n presented i n 

Case 12,922? 

A. Yes, I d i d . 

Q. Okay. Well, you probably remember a question 

about the washout i n the Atoka? 

A. Uh-huh. 

Q. And what would you do, d r i l l i n g through the 

Atoka, i f you — 

A. The — I don't — Well, I guess my f i r s t comment 

i s t h a t I don't know what Nearburg d i d . I don't have — I 

do not have a d r i l l i n g r e p o r t t o i n d i c a t e what t h e i r water 

loss c o n t r o l was there. I mean, t h a t would be a 

s i g n i f i c a n t c o n s i d e r a t i o n . 

Two of the primary d r i l l i n g c o n s i d e r a t i o n s i n 

t h i s area are c o n t r o l of wellbore d e v i a t i o n , as w e l l as 

water loss c o n t r o l , and t h a t i s s i g n i f i c a n t i n the Atoka as 
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w e l l as the Morrow. I can only assume t h a t they were not 

c o n t r o l l i n g water loss when they d r i l l e d t h i s , because, as 

i n d i c a t e d a t the bottom of the c r o s s - s e c t i o n , i t was a t e s t 

t h a t was d r i l l e d t o the Devonian, d r i l l e d t o 14,650 f e e t . 

Q. Would your d r i l l i n g c o n t r a c t w i t h your — Would 

i t be a day r a t e or a footage rate? 

A. I'm not sure which t h a t they would choose. I 

mean, t h a t ' s something t h a t o p e r a t i o n a l l y we look a t i n 

which, you know, best arrangements, best p r i c e , you know, 

best — but more c r i t i c a l would be c o n t r o l of the w e l l and 

p r o t e c t i o n of the zones. 

Q. Okay, I should have prefaced t h a t w i t h , I guess, 

most of our experience has been t h a t d r i l l i n g engineers are 

extremely b i g egos, and they r a r e l y l i s t e n t o g e o l o g i s t s , 

f o r — sometimes f o r r e a l l y good reasons, but — 

A. They'd r a t h e r not l i s t e n t o g e o l o g i s t s . 

Q. Right. 

A. We've got a good working r e l a t i o n s h i p w i t h our 

op e r a t i o n a l people, and we work together and they're always 

seeking our in p u t on matters of p r o t e c t i n g p o t e n t i a l 

p r o d u c t i v e zones. 

MR. JONES: Thank you very much. No f u r t h e r 

questions. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Nothing f u r t h e r , the witness 

may step down. 
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Anything further, Mr. Owen? 
MR. OWEN: Yes, Mr. Examiner, I ' d l i k e t o r e c a l l 

Mr. Mike Headington f o r a couple of b r i e f questions. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Very good. 

MICHAEL S. HEADINGTON. 

the witness he r e i n , a f t e r having been f i r s t duly sworn upon 

h i s oath, was examined and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. OWEN: 

Q. Mr. Headington, i s Great Western w i l l i n g t o have 

a p r o v i s i o n included i n any order r e s u l t i n g from t h i s 

hearing which would r e q u i r e Great Western t o d r i l l t h i s 

w e l l before March 1, 2002? 

A. Yes, I be l i e v e we would be w i l l i n g t o . 

Q. Or a t l e a s t commence d r i l l i n g before t h a t p e r i o d 

of time? 

A. Yes, I t h i n k we a l l respect everybody's 

e x p i r a t i o n dates, agree t o t h a t . 

Q. Okay. Does Great Western operate other — Has 

Great Western d r i l l e d or operated other hydrocarbon w e l l s 

anywhere else i n the l a s t f i v e years? 

A. We p a r t i c i p a t e or d r i l l . I've been t h e r e , you 

know, c e r t a i n l y i n the l a s t 12 years. We've been averaging 

about 50 t o 65 w e l l s a year t h a t we e i t h e r — We operate 

about 50 percent of those, w i t h the other h a l f being not 
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operated. But we've been p a r t i c i p a t i n g i n t h a t many w e l l s 

c o n s i s t e n t l y f o r the l a s t ten years, west Texas, 

southeastern New Mexico, northwestern New Mexico, as w e l l 

as south Texas. 

Q. So you have experience i n d r i l l i n g and ope r a t i n g 

w e l l s i n the l a s t f i v e years? 

A. Yes, I beli e v e we do, Paul. 

Q. And you have experience d r i l l i n g and oper a t i n g 

Atoka-Townsend w e l l s i n t h i s immediate area? 

A. Yes. 

MR. OWEN: Okay, t h a t ' s a l l I have. 

MR. HALL: B r i e f cross? 

EXAMINER BROOKS: A l l r i g h t . 

CROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MR. HALL: 

Q. Can you p o i n t t o us a Townsend-Morrow or Atoka 

w e l l you've d r i l l e d i n the l a s t few years? 

A. We've — Again, we've p a r t i c i p a t e d , you know, as 

an a c t i v e , l a r g e , non-operating owner i n the s e c t i o n t o the 

southeast of the proposed l o c a t i o n . Great Western owned 3 6 

percent of a couple of those w e l l s , so we were a c t i v e l y 

i n v o l v e d w i t h the design and implementation of those w e l l s . 

I'm not a b s o l u t e l y sure where the Morton-Wolfcamp 

t e s t s were taken. Russell, you may know more about t h a t 

than I would. He would maybe need t o — But we d r i l l e d 
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t h r e e miles n o r t h of here, we have d r i l l e d a couple of 

w e l l s , I be l i e v e t o the Morrow. They were completed i n the 

Wolfcamp. 

Q. That Great Western was the d r i l l i n g — 

A. Great Western operated, yes, s i r . 

Q. You made reference t o the si z e of Great Western's 

p a r t i c i p a t i o n i n some of i t s nonoperated w e l l s . I n t h i s 

p a r t i c u l a r case, which i n t e r e s t owner owns the s i n g l e 

l a r g e s t i n t e r e s t i n the well? Owns? 

A. I be l i e v e the e x h i b i t shows David A r r i n g t o n do. 

Q. And would A r r i n g t o n be responsible f o r paying the 

l a r g e s t share of w e l l costs i n the w e l l t h a t ' s u l t i m a t e l y 

d r i l l e d ? 

A. At t h i s p o i n t I believe he would, yes. 

MR. HALL: Nothing f u r t h e r . 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Mr. Owen, anything f u r t h e r ? 

MR. OWEN: Nothing f u r t h e r , Mr. Examiner. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Very good, the witness may 

stand down. 

MR. OWEN: And t h a t concludes my p r e s e n t a t i o n i n 

t h i s case. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Mr. Hall? 

MR. HALL: C a l l Mr. B i l l Baker t o the stand, Mr. 

Examiner. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Mr. Baker, Mr. H a l l . 
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MR. HALL: Mr. Examiner, we've already 

e s t a b l i s h e d Mr. Baker's c r e d e n t i a l i n these cases. I 

assume there's no reason t o tender him as an expert again. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: He i s so q u a l i f i e d . 

BILLY DON BAKER, JR.. 

the witness h e r e i n , a f t e r having been f i r s t d uly sworn upon 

h i s oath, was examined and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. HALL: 

Q. Mr. Baker, I ' d l i k e t o discuss w i t h you the 

re s p e c t i v e d i l i g e n c e exercised by the p a r t i e s i n these 

proceedings. I f you could t e l l us, Mr, Baker, e x p l a i n f o r 

the Hearing Examiner the sequence of events here from s t a r t 

t o f i n i s h , g e t t i n g A rrington's w e l l proposal o f f the 

ground. And i f you would r e f e r t o E x h i b i t 12 when you do 

t h a t , please, s i r . 

A. Okay, t h i s E x h i b i t 12 i s a chronology of events 

i n how we got t o our respective l o c a t i o n , and t h i s was 

presented i n the September 5th hearing, up t o t h a t b u l l e t 

p o i n t down below t h a t says September 3rd of 2002. 

And t o j u s t b r i e f l y go back across i t , you know, 

we acquired our f i r s t i n t e r e s t i n here i n January of 2001, 

through a mutually agreeable deal w i t h Devon. We a c t u a l l y 

acquired our Hunt i n t e r e s t i n here March, 2 001. 

We staked the i n i t i a l l o c a t i o n i n here i n A p r i l 
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of 2002. We were doing the same t h i n g , as Mr. Richards 

a l l u d e d t o , we were monitoring the w e l l , the Kukui w e l l , i n 

Section 6. Upon r e c e i v i n g the l o t s and the i n f o r m a t i o n of 

t h a t , we re-staked the w e l l on June 21st of 2002. 

We a c t u a l l y sent out an i n i t i a l w e l l proposal. 

I t had a typo i n i t , so we — That was on June 18th. We 

a c t u a l l y sent the second w e l l proposal w i t h the c o r r e c t e d 

typo on June 27th of 2002. We s t a r t e d our archaeology 

survey J u l y 1st, and we s t a r t e d r e c e i v i n g our c e r t i f i e d 

r e c e i p t s i n on J u l y 1st from the other p a r t i e s i n t h i s 

s e c t i o n . 

On J u l y 23rd, Davoil d i d c a l l Mr. Douglas, i f I'm 

not mistaken, and request a j o i n t o p e r ating agreement be 

sent t o them. And i f I'm not mistaken, t h a t was sent as 

w e l l . 

On August 2nd, we f i l e d our APD t o the BLM, and 

then on August the 12th we contacted Mr. H a l l t o s t a r t 

compulsory p o o l i n g proceedings. I n August we f i l e d our 

A p p l i c a t i o n . And then we showed up on September 5th f o r 

t h a t compulsory p o o l i n g hearing. 

Q. And what happened a f t e r t h a t date? Or what 

happened on t h a t date? 

A. Well, a c t u a l l y on t h a t date — I mean, we got 

here and showed everything t h a t we had. And as of t h a t 

date we s p e c i f i c a l l y had not received Great Western's 
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d r i l l i n g proposal f o r t h e i r Federal "34", I b e l i e v e . I t 

was when I got back, you know, home on the 6th t h a t we 

a c t u a l l y had received, and i t was stamped i n our o f f i c e on 

t h a t date. 

Q. And so — and you're r e f e r r i n g — That's the 

f i r s t r e a c t i o n t o e i t h e r the June 18th or June 2 7th 

proposal l e t t e r s ? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. There had been s i l e n c e before t h a t time? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. What else happened on September 5th? 

A. Well, now, on September 5th, the day we got here, 

Great Western a c t u a l l y f i l e d t h e i r compulsory p o o l i n g 

a p p l i c a t i o n here t h a t morning. And t h a t was, l i k e I say, 

p r i o r t o us r e c e i v i n g t h e i r w e l l proposal. And then on the 

5th we also d i d get approval from the BLM on t h a t day back 

i n Midland, t h a t our APD had been approved by the BLM. 

Let's see, on September 6th, the day a f t e r we 

showed up here, Mr. A r r i n g t o n a c t u a l l y drove t o A r t e s i a , 

New Mexico, and had a face-to-face meeting w i t h Mr. Randy 

Patterson i n an attempt t o s o l i c i t Yates's p a r t i c i p a t i o n i n 

the w e l l . 

On the 12th of September I sent an e-mail t o Mr. 

Patterson c o n f i r m i n g the conversation t h a t Mr. Patterson 

and Mr. A r r i n g t o n had had, as we understood i t , and how the 
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conversation went, and you know, was l o o k i n g forward t o Mr. 

Patterson's support i n the w e l l and t o respond t o us as t o 

how they were going t o p a r t i c i p a t e i n the w e l l . 

On September 16th Randy Patterson d i d respond t o 

me by e-mail, s t a t i n g t h a t they had had the conversation, 

t h a t t h a t p a r t i c u l a r time they had not completely agreed t o 

p a r t i c i p a t e w i t h Mr. A r r i n g t o n , they had t o pool t h e i r 

p a r t n e r s . 

And I d i d some follow-up e-mails s t a t i n g t h a t I 

c e r t a i n l y understand how i t i s t o deal w i t h p a r t n e r s , but 

because of the urgency of t h i s p a r t i c u l a r hearing, would 

they please respond t o us as soon as possible? 

On the 19th we received — or b a s i c a l l y I guess 

Great Western sends t h e i r n o t i c e of p o o l i n g . 

On the 27th I followed up w i t h a d d i t i o n a l 

communication t o Mr. Patterson w i t h Yates, because a t t h a t 

time I had not heard anything back from the o r i g i n a l l e t t e r 

t h a t I sent him on the 12th. 

On September 27th Tom Brown, I n c . , executed the 

farmout t o David H. A r r i n g t o n O i l and Gas, Inc. 

On October the 2nd, Mr. A r r i n g t o n a c t u a l l y sent 

an e-mail t o Mr. Patterson a t Yates Petroleum saying we 

s t i l l have not heard from you, we haven't had any response, 

would you please respond as t o how you're going t o 

p a r t i c i p a t e or what you're going t o do i n t h i s p a r t i c u l a r 
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well. 

And then on October the 8th, which I guess would 

have been t h a t Monday, Monday or Tuesday, Mr. A r r i n g t o n 

a c t u a l l y made a follow-up phone c a l l t o Mr. Patterson. At 

t h a t time Mr. Patterson was unav a i l a b l e , he was not i n the 

o f f i c e . Mr. A r r i n g t o n l e f t i n s t r u c t i o n s w i t h h i s secretary 

i f he would please c a l l him. 

And then on October the 9th Mr. Patterson d i d 

c a l l Mr. A r r i n g t o n back and advised them t h a t they would be 

p a r t i c i p a t i n g and supporting Great Western i n t h e i r 

proposal. 

Q. Now, l e t ' s look a t E x h i b i t 13. What does E x h i b i t 

13 c o n s i s t of? 

A. E x h i b i t 13 i s j u s t a l l — I t ' s a copy of a l l the 

e-mails and correspondence t h a t I referenced i n Number 12 

w i t h Mr. Patterson. 

The very f i r s t one was September the 12th. I 

also referenced a l e t t e r i n here t h a t I sent t o Randy 

Patterson, b a s i c a l l y discussing Mr. A r r i n g t o n and Mr. 

Patterson's conversation, as we understood t h a t 

conversation. 

The 16th was Mr. Patterson's communication back 

t o us, s t a t i n g t h a t I had i n d i c a t e d we had agreed t o 

support him. We d i d not agree on the spot. I t o l d David 

t h a t we w i l l consider h i s request. We have p a r t n e r s t o 
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deal w i t h , as you know. Thanks, Randy. RP. 

On the 17th I responded t o Mr. Patterson, Thanks 

f o r your r e p l y about having t o deal w i t h p a r t n e r s . Please 

t r y t o pool your partners as soon as p o s s i b l e . I made a 

comment i n th e r e t h a t I know t h a t you and David discussed 

the r i g h t t h i n g t o do i n these s i t u a t i o n s and t h a t the 

s i n g l e l a r g e s t i n t e r e s t owner should be the operator of the 

w e l l . I b e l i e v e t h a t you would support t h i s p o s i t i o n as i t 

i s the r i g h t t h i n g t o do. And once again thanked him. 

The 27th, Friday the 27th, I s t i l l had not heard 

from Mr. Patterson. This i s j u s t another l e t t e r or e-mail 

saying, you know, Have you contacted your p a r t n e r s i n the 

Huma Huma and determined your p o s i t i o n as t o suppo r t i n g 

A r r i n g t o n as operator i n the well? This i s j u s t another 

communication w i t h him. 

And then the l a s t one i s October 2nd, where Mr. 

A r r i n g t o n a c t u a l l y sent Mr. Patterson an e-mail saying, We 

haven't heard a decis i o n and what are you going t o do? We 

have a hearing next week and we s t i l l have not heard from 

you. 

That's j u s t the e-mails we sent, correspondence. 

Q. Now, a t the previous hearing Great Western 

p r o t e s t e d t h a t the percentage i n t e r e s t t h a t we represented 

A r r i n g t o n c o n t r o l l e d f o r the w e l l was not accurate. I 

be l i e v e we had s t a t e d c o n t r o l l e d 36 percent or so — 
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A. 32, yes. 

Q. 32 percent, r a t h e r . 

A. Yes. 

Q. And they asserted t h a t the c o r r e c t number i s 2 4 

percent. What's the d i f f e r e n c e there? 

A. The d i f f e r e n c e there i s the Tom Brown i n t e r e s t . 

And a t t h a t p a r t i c u l a r time we had, i f I'm not mistaken — 

and Mr. Douglas can t e l l us d i r e c t l y — I b e l i e v e we had 

got a — entered i n t o an agreement w i t h Tom Brown i f they 

would enter i n t o a farmout, i f I'm not mistaken, of t h e i r 

i n t e r e s t t o David H. A r r i n g t o n O i l and Gas, Inc. 

Q. Since t h a t hearing, have they executed a farmout 

agreement? 

A. Yes, they have. That was September 2 7t h , I 

b e l i e v e , we received the executed document on t h a t . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Since you were in v o l v e d d i r e c t l y i n 

the e f f o r t s t o secure the j o i n d e r of the uncommitted 

i n t e r e s t here, the Yates n e g o t i a t i o n s , and i n view of the 

f a c t t h a t you've p a r t i c i p a t e d i n numerous compulsory 

p o o l i n g proceedings before the D i v i s i o n , i n your o p i n i o n , 

d i d A r r i n g t o n exercise good f a i t h i n seeking t o acquire the 

p a r t i c i p a t i o n of the unjoined i n t e r e s t s p r i o r t o f i l i n g i t s 

compulsory p o o l i n g Application? 

A. Yes, s i r , I believe so. 

Q. Mr. Baker, what do you know about Great Western's 
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experience i n d r i l l i n g i n the Lovington area? 

A. Well, I mean, obviously we've known of Great 

Western D r i l l i n g f o r a number of years. We have not 

p a r t i c u l a r l y crossed paths i n southeast New Mexico, as I 

have focused p r i n c i p a l l y on Lea County since 1990. 

But when t h i s began t o transform as t o an 

operator issue, I a c t u a l l y went t o a s e r v i c e t h a t we had 

and b a s i c a l l y had my geotech conduct a search of the w e l l s 

t h a t Great Western had d r i l l e d i n t h i s immediate area, 

and — 

Q. Let's look a t E x h i b i t 14. 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. Can you i d e n t i f y t h a t f o r the Examiner? 

A. Yes, s i r , t h i s i s a copy of t h a t search t h a t I 

had her do, and t h i s i s from d r i l l i n g i n f o . c o m . And t h i s i s 

j u s t a data-gathering service t h a t you can pay a fee f o r , 

and they have data t h a t has been supplied t o the O i l 

Conservation D i v i s i o n , the Railroad Commission, any type of 

p u b l i c s e r v i c e . And they gather t h i s i n f o r m a t i o n , i s what 

they do, and you can pay a fee t o access t h i s data. 

And what I d i d i s , I simply asked my geotech t o 

please go back f i v e years and j u s t research the number of 

w e l l s , Atoka-Morrow w e l l s , t h a t Great Western D r i l l i n g had 

operated i n Lea and Eddy County. 

And as you can see by what I colored here i n 
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yellow, what t h i s p a r t i c u l a r survey popped out was 

b a s i c a l l y two w e l l s . 

One of them i s located near Hobbs, and i t appears 

t o be a 5400-foot — probably a San Andres t e s t t h a t 

appears t o have been d r i l l e d i n June of 2 000. 

And then the second one appears t o be a 15,000-

f o o t t e s t down i n southern Lea County. But i t a l s o — 

these records look l i k e — i t looks l i k e Great Western may 

have taken t h a t w e l l over as operator i n 1997, and a 

company c a l l e d Trans-Global O i l was probably the operator 

i n 1994. 

But b a s i c a l l y , i t i n d i c a t e s t h a t i n the l a s t f i v e 

years, which i s what t h i s was, from 1997 t o date, they had 

operated two w e l l s i n Lea County. 

Q. Let me ask you a l i t t l e b i t about 

d r i l l i n g i n f o . c o m . I s i t a p r o p r i e t a r y database? 

A. Yes, s i r , you have t o pay a fee. 

Q. And I understand the d r i l l i n g i n f o . c o m data i s 

der i v e d from o f f i c i a l documents of record from p u b l i c 

agencies; i s t h a t correct? 

A. As I understand i t , yes, s i r . 

Q. And i s the data you d e r i v e from 

d r i l l i n g i n f o . c o m 1 s database the type of data t h a t i n d u s t r y 

r e l i e s i n the conduct of i t s operations? 

A. Yes, s i r , I believe so. 
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Q. Let's look a t E x h i b i t 15. 

A. Okay, E x h i b i t 15, i s the same t h i n g , but only f o r 

A r r i n g t o n . And b a s i c a l l y what we d i d i s , we j u s t simply 

had her go back f i v e years and research a l l the w e l l s t h a t 

were operated by David H. A r r i n g t o n O i l and Gas, I n c . , i n 

Eddy and Lea County. And b a s i c a l l y what t h i s popped out i s 

what you see on t h i s i n i t i a l p l a t . 

You can see there's a heavy c l u s t e r of w e l l s i n 

and around the Lovington area, and then you see a c l u s t e r 

of w e l l s k i n d of i n western Eddy. The t o t a l number of 

w e l l s on here i s between 28 t o 32 w e l l s . Now, not a l l 

those are Atoka-Morrow. The Atoka-Morrow w e l l s c o n s i s t of 

about 15 w e l l s t h a t we have operated i n here. And a l l of 

them, w i t h the exception of one or two, are r i g h t i n t h a t 

Lovington area. So t h a t ' s what t h a t shows. 

Q. Do the attachments t o E x h i b i t 15 r e f l e c t dry 

holes? 

A. No, s i r , t h a t was one of the t h i n g s t h a t we 

no t i c e d on here, because several of our w e l l s t h a t were dry 

holes d i d not pop up on here. So t h i s i s only producers. 

So I would — I guess Great Western could have d r i l l e d some 

w e l l s i n the l a s t f i v e years out here t h a t were dry holes 

t h a t I would not know about. 

Q. And by t h a t same token, A r r i n g t o n could have 

d r i l l e d a d d i t i o n a l dry holes t h a t are not — 
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A. I know of two s p e c i f i c dry holes on here t h a t are 

located east of Lovington t h a t were Strawn t e s t s t h a t 

aren't located on here. 

Q. So w i t h i n the l a s t f i v e years, the data shows 

t h a t A r r i n g t o n has d r i l l e d 32-plus w e l l s t o the Morrow 

formation i n the Lovington area? 

A. Yes, s i r . And I should also note, the f i r s t page 

r i g h t a f t e r t h i s also shows a l o t of the l o c a t i o n s t h a t we 

c u r r e n t l y have approved and ready t o go, t o d r i l l . Not a l l 

of those are Atoka-Morrow. This researches a l l approved 

permits. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Notwithstanding t h a t the data don't 

r e f l e c t dry holes, and i t appears t h a t the one Great 

Western deep w e l l was probably a takeover, does i t appear 

t h a t Great Western has d r i l l e d zero w e l l s i n the Lovington 

area? 

A. I n the l a s t f i v e years, yes, s i r . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Today you've had a chance, I take i t , 

t o review or a t l e a s t l i s t e n t o testimony about Great 

Western's estimated w e l l costs under i t s AFE? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. And A r r i n g t o n and Great Western are w i t h i n 

$30,000 or so on t h e i r w e l l costs? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. I n your view, can A r r i n g t o n d r i l l i t s w e l l i n 
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l i n e w i t h the AFE cost estimates under the Great Western 

AFE? 

A. Yes, s i r , I'm sure we could. 

Q. Mr. Baker, i f you would, I ' d l i k e f o r you t o 

e x p l a i n t o the Hearing Examiner the exact procedures t h a t 

A r r i n g t o n employs in-house f o r s t a r t i n g a w e l l and t a k i n g 

i t t o completion, s t a r t t o f i n i s h . How does t h a t work i n -

house? 

A. Well, b a s i c a l l y , I mean, you've got your 

g e o l o g i s t , your landman, your engineers. The g e o l o g i s t ' s 

j o b i s t o use subsurface w e l l c o n t r o l , seismic data, any 

i n f o r m a t i o n a v a i l a b l e t o him t o research an area t o come up 

w i t h d r i l l a b l e e x p l o r a t i o n t a r g e t s . 

Once the g e o l o g i s t has i d e n t i f i e d a t a r g e t , then 

you contact the landman, you ge n e r a l l y s t a r t , you know, 

doing an acreage search and t r y i n g t o attempt t o acquire 

acreage. 

Once we have acquired acreage i n t h e r e , i n a 

prospe c t i v e area, we a c t u a l l y propose a l o c a t i o n . And i t ' s 

a t t h a t time t h a t we r e a l l y s t a r t a l l o c a t i n g d o l l a r s t o the 

p r o j e c t . At t h a t p o i n t you continue t o t r y t o secure a l l 

the leases i n the prospective area, as many as p o s s i b l e , up 

u n t i l a p o i n t i n which you f e e l l i k e , okay, now I have a l l 

the a v a i l a b l e acreage t h a t I can lease or farm i n or 

something l i k e t h a t , and then you make a w e l l proposal t o a 
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designated t a r g e t , whatever t h a t t a r g e t may be. 

You a c t u a l l y s t a r t sending out w e l l proposals, 

you contact the other p o t e n t i a l working i n t e r e s t owners i n 

t h a t p a r t i c u l a r u n i t . 

We a c t u a l l y go through the process a t t h a t time 

of going ahead and st a k i n g a w e l l . I f i t ' s on f e d e r a l 

acreage, you obviously have t o s t a r t an a r c h a e o l o g i c a l 

study, and t h a t archaeological study can take anywhere from 

30 t o 60 days. And you f i l e — once you get t h a t arch, 

s i t e study i n — excuse me, the arch, s i t e study a c t u a l l y 

takes about a week t o ten days; i t ' s the BLM a p p l i c a t i o n 

t h a t a c t u a l l y takes 45 t o 60 days, i s what i t does. 

But once you get your arch, s i t e survey back i n , 

you f i l e t h a t w i t h the BLM along w i t h the a p p l i c a t i o n f o r a 

permit. They go through a l l t h e i r proceedings, and then i f 

e v e r y t h i n g checks out they w i l l approve your l o c a t i o n . And 

as I understand i t , w i t h t h a t they send i t a u t o m a t i c a l l y t o 

the s t a t e . And the s t a t e , i t ' s an automatic — once the 

BLM approves i t , i t ' s an approved l o c a t i o n , then the s t a t e 

a u t o m a t i c a l l y approves i t , and you get your APD. 

And from t h a t p o i n t , then we move t o t r y t o clean 

up your n e g o t i a t i o n s w i t h your other working i n t e r e s t 

p a r t n e r s i n there or begin f o r c e p o o l i n g proceedings, 

whatever i t takes a t t h a t p o i n t t o move the w e l l towards 

g e t t i n g a spud date put together and commencing the 
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d r i l l i n g of t h a t w e l l . 

Once t h a t procedure has taken place, which 

g e n e r a l l y can take 60 t o 9 0 days minimum t o go through a 

p o o l i n g proceeding, you know, w i t h your good f a i t h 

n e g o t i a t i o n time of 30 days t o s i x weeks — d i f f e r e n t law 

f i r m s suggest d i f f e r e n t c r i t e r i a — and then you've got 

your n o t i f i c a t i o n p e r i o d and then you've got your hearing, 

and then g e n e r a l l y you have 3 0 days of time, minimum, 

before an order i s issued. 

And then a f t e r t h a t , depending on r i g schedule, 

budget, e v e r y t h i n g else, you move forward w i t h the d r i l l i n g 

of the w e l l . 

Q. So a l l t o l d , from s t a r t t o f i n i s h you're t a l k i n g 

how much time? Six months or more? 

A. About s i x months, I ' d say, i s probably a good 

average time. 

Q. And you s t a r t e d your e f f o r t s when, i n January? 

A. I n January of t h i s year. 

Q. And Great Western d i d n ' t s t a r t t h e i r e f f o r t s 

u n t i l September, correct? 

A. As f a r as formal w e l l proposals, yes, s i r . 

Q. Well, l e t me ask you, what i s the surface 

ownership i n Section 34? 

A. I t ' s my understanding t h a t the surface ownership 

i s owned by Mr. Dan F i e l d s out here, and we have an 
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operations g e o l o g i s t , Mr. Danny Ledford, who does our APDs, 

our w e l l s i t e , and I b e l i e v e we have already n e g o t i a t e d an 

agreement w i t h Mr. F i e l d s on t h i s s p e c i f i c d r i l l s i t e . 

Q. And d i d you get a t i t l e t a k e o f f or a t i t l e 

opinion? 

A. Yes, s i r . That doesn't f a l l under my 

a u t h o r i z a t i o n , but yes s i r , as I understand i t , we already 

have a t i t l e o p i n ion, approved t i t l e o p i n i o n , of t h i s area. 

Q. Okay. Well, l e t ' s go through t h i s l i s t from the 

testimony we've heard from Great Western today. T e l l me i f 

you agree or not, but i t doesn't appear t h a t they 

i d e n t i f i e d t h i s prospect, c o r r e c t ? 

A. Not u n t i l probably Kukui w i l l , yes, s i r . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . And they've had t h a t lease f o r how 

many years? 

A. I b e l i e v e Mr. Douglas i n our t a k e o f f says 197 3. 

Q. So nearly 30 years? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. You heard no testimony w i t h respect t o whether 

they obtained a t i t l e opinion? 

A. I haven't heard any. 

Q. Okay. Their testimony v e r i f i e d t h a t they had not 

done a f i e l d inspection? I b e l i e v e t h a t ' s c o r r e c t ? 

A. Correct, I t h i n k t h a t Mr. Headington suggested 

they had contacted the BLM and t a l k e d about the t r a n s f e r of 
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our i n f o r m a t i o n or our APD, i f i t should be. 

Q. And Great Western d i d not undertake t o o b t a i n an 

arch a e o l o g i c a l survey f o r the acreage? 

A. Not t h a t I've heard, no, s i r . 

Q. Great Western d i d n ' t even know who the surface 

owner was; i s t h a t correct? 

A. I don't believe they t e s t i f i e d t h a t they d i d . 

Q. I s n ' t i t c o r r e c t t o say t h a t they t e s t i f i e d t h a t 

they had not entered i n t o a surface owner agreement? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. And given your understanding t h a t 3 0 days i s the 

minimum time you can f i l e a compulsory p o o l i n g a p p l i c a t i o n 

a f t e r having submitted a w e l l proposal, they d i d n ' t do t h a t 

e i t h e r ? 

A. No, s i r . 

Q. Okay. Let's look a t your E x h i b i t 16 b r i e f l y . I 

have t h a t i n f r o n t of me. What i s th a t ? 

A. That's j u s t our approved APD t h a t was completed 

by the BLM and w i t h an e f f e c t i v e date of September 9th of 

' 02. 

Q. Now, ex p l a i n t o us, when d i d A r r i n g t o n a c t u a l l y 

commit the c a p i t a l t o d r i l l t h i s well? 

A. That probably would have been i n January of 2002. 

Q. Mr. Baker, i f you would r e f e r t o what's been 

marked as E x h i b i t 18 — and I recognize, Mr. Examiner, the 
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number here — what i s E x h i b i t 18? 

A. I b e l i e v e t h i s i s a copy of our understanding of 

the working i n t e r e s t i n the east h a l f of Section 34 t h a t we 

f i l e d a t the September 5th hearing. And b a s i c a l l y t h i s 

j u s t o u t l i n e s the working i n t e r e s t t h a t we had an 

understanding of i n t h a t u n i t a t t h a t p a r t i c u l a r time. 

But w i t h the exception of t h i s one r i g h t here, we 

have taken our proposed AFE of $1,524,901, and then we have 

a c t u a l l y taken t h a t working i n t e r e s t and a t t r i b u t e d a w e l l 

cost, what each i n d i v i d u a l w e l l cost i s going t o be t o 

t h a t . 

Q. And again, which s i n g l e owner i s paying the 

l a r g e s t share of costs t o d r i l l t h i s well? 

A. Well, r i g h t now, once again, the l a r g e s t s i n g l e 

owner i s Mr. A r r i n g t o n w i t h 32 — a l i t t l e over 3 2 percent. 

And he's going t o have t o spend about $488,000 on t h i s 

p a r t i c u l a r w e l l . 

Q. And how much l a r g e r i s Mr. A r r i n g t o n ' s share, 

compared t o Great Western's share? 

A. I t would be roughly t w i c e . 

Q. And we've heard no testimony here today, have we, 

w i t h respect t o when Great Western has committed t h e i r 

c a p i t a l t o the well? 

A. No, s i r , not t h a t I r e c a l l . 

MR. HALL: Mr. Examiner, t h a t concludes my d i r e c t 
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of this witness. 

I would move the admission of E x h i b i t s 12, 13, 

14, 15, 16 and 18. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Objection? 

MR. OWEN: No o b j e c t i o n . 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Twelve through 16 and 18 are 

admitted. 

Cross-examination? 

MR. OWEN: Yes. 

CROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MR. OWEN: 

Q. Mr. Baker, I want you t o t u r n t o A r r i n g t o n 

E x h i b i t Number 13. 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. That r e f l e c t s n e g o t i a t i o n s t h a t you had w i t h 

Randy Patterson of Yates; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. You had q u i t e a few correspondence and e-mails 

back and f o r t h ? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. Who i s Yates supporting i n t h i s case? 

A. Great Western. 

Q. Great Western? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. Did they agree t o support Arrington? 
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A. No, s i r . 

Q. I don't see any communications here w i t h the 

group represented by C o l i n McMillan. Do you have any of 

those? 

A. I t was our understanding t h a t Yates Petroleum was 

re p r e s e n t i n g t h e i r group, t h a t ' s t h e i r group t h a t they were 

rep r e s e n t i n g , t h e i r p artners. 

Q. Did you attempt t o contact Mr. McMillan or any of 

the companies represented by h i s i n t e r e s t s ? 

A. No, s i r . We f e l t l i k e Yates Petroleum and Randy 

Patterson were speaking f o r them. 

Q. And I don't — I n f a c t , Yates supports Great 

Western again, r i g h t ? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. I don't see any n e g o t i a t i o n s i n t h i s packet w i t h 

Great Western. Do you have any of those? 

A. No, s i r . We f e l t l i k e w i t h t h e i r competing 

p o o l i n g A p p l i c a t i o n t h a t they wanted t o operate t h i s w e l l , 

and t h e r e r e a l l y wasn't a need t o be t r y i n g t o get them t o 

p a r t i c i p a t e w i t h us when they were f i l i n g a competing 

p o o l i n g a p p l i c a t i o n . 

Q. And the only other n e g o t i a t i o n s you've had w i t h 

Great Western i s sending out your w e l l proposal — 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. — i s t h a t r i g h t ? 
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A. Correct. 

Q. And the only n e g o t i a t i o n s you've had from Great 

Western i s the r e c e i p t of t h e i r proposal; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. Correct, yes, s i r . 

Q. And the only p a r t y t h a t you've a c t u a l l y 

n e g otiated w i t h i s Yates? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And Yates ended up supporting Great Western? 

A. Correct. 

Q. Yates i s committed t o a JOA; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. As I understand i t . 

Q. And t h a t JOA appoints Great Western as the 

operator? 

A. As was t e s t i f i e d , I b e l i e v e so. 

Q. Okay. You s t a t e d t h a t you received a farmout 

from Tom Brown, In c . ; i s t h a t correct? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. Have you recorded t h a t instrument? 

A. I do not know, s i r . That's not under my 

d i r e c t i o n and we'd have t o defer t o Mr. Douglas as t o t h a t . 

Q. Okay. You presented petroleum geology e x h i b i t s 

a t the September 5th hearing, correct? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. Did you look a t 3-D seismic i n the development of 

t h i s prospect? 
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A. Yes, s i r , we have 3-D seismic. 

Q. I s t h a t p r o p r i e t a r y ? 

A. Yes, s i r , i t i s . 

Q. You paid money t o get t h a t ? 

A. Yes, s i r , we d i d . 

Q. Probably under a s i m i l a r arrangement as Great 

Western; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. I do not know. 

Q. How many w e l l s , deep gas w e l l s , has A r r i n g t o n 

d r i l l e d i n the l a s t f i v e years, i n the immediate — 

A. Approximately 15. 

Q. How many times has A r r i n g t o n f a i l e d t o reach 

v o l u n t a r y agreement w i t h the i n t e r e s t owners i n those w e l l s 

and proceeded t o a compulsory pool i n g hearing? 

A. Not many. Maybe two or t h r e e , f o u r . 

Q. So i f we looked a t the D i v i s i o n ' s orders over the 

l a s t f o u r or f i v e years, there w i l l only be two or t h r e e 

compulsory p o o l i n g hearings i n v o l v i n g Arrington? 

A. No, s i r , I mean we've had numerous hearings, but 

we've always ended up coming t o an agreement. 

Q. You've always ended up — Have you a c t u a l l y gone 

through and gotten an order i n any case? 

A. Oh, yes, s i r . 

Q. I want you t o look a t A r r i n g t o n E x h i b i t Number 

18. You've got a l o t of percentages represented t h e r e . 
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What percent out of t h a t 100 percent represented a t the 

bottom has committed t o a JOA appointing A r r i n g t o n as an 

operator? 

A. 32 percent. 

Q. What percent has committed t o a JOA naming Great 

Western as an operator? 

A. I guess the remaining 67-point-something. 

Q. Now, you i n d i c a t e d t h a t 32 percent has agreed t o 

a JOA w i t h A r r i n g t o n as an operator? 

A. Well, Mr. A r r i n g t o n and h i s i n t e r e s t , yeah, or 

i t ' s j u s t us. 

Q. Do you have a JOA i n place? 

A. I don't know. I mean, we have a JOA, but we 

don't have any other p a r t n e r s . 

Q. So i t ' s simply Arrington? 

A. Correct. 

Q. There i s no JOA? 

A. Correct. 

Q. I f A r r i n g t o n i s the operator of t h i s w e l l , i t 

w i l l be under the guise of a compulsory p o o l i n g order; i s 

t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. Correct. 

Q. Have you seen compulsory p o o l i n g orders from t h i s 

D i v i s i o n i n the past? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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Q. Do they t r e a t subsequent operations? 

A. I don't r e c a l l . 

Q. Do they t r e a t plugging? 

A. I don't r e c a l l . 

Q. Do they t r e a t l i a b i l i t y between the p a r t i e s ? 

A. I don't r e c a l l i f they do or not. 

Q. Do they t r e a t d e f a u l t s between the p a r t i e s ? 

A. I don't r e c a l l . 

Q. Do they t r e a t l a w s u i t s between the p a r t i e s ? 

A. I don't believe so. 

Q. Do they t r e a t accounting? 

A. I don't believe so. 

Q. What percentage of t h i s 100 percent represented 

on E x h i b i t Number 18 i s committed t o a JOA naming Great 

Western as an operator? 

MR. HALL: Objection, asked and answered. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Sustained. 

Q. (By Mr. Owen) I t ' s about 67 percent, i s n ' t i t ? 

A. Yes, s i r , as I understand i t . 

Q. And t h a t JOA i s — Have you seen t h a t JOA? 

A. No, s i r , I have not. 

Q. I'm handing you Great Western E x h i b i t Number 4. 

Can you t e l l me what t h a t is? 

A. I t looks l i k e a model form operating agreement, 

i t ' s Form 610-1989 operating agreement. 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

82 

Q. Does t h a t name Great Western as the operator? 

A. Well, the operator on the f i r s t page says Great 

Western, yes, s i r . 

Q. Are you f a m i l i a r w i t h t h i s form o p e r a t i n g 

agreement? 

A. No, s i r , I'm not q u a l i f i e d as f a r as o p e r a t i n g 

agreements. You can l e t Mr. Douglas — 

Q. Mr. Douglas is? 

A. Right. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Now, when you were disc u s s i n g your 

n e g o t i a t i o n s w i t h the p a r t i e s , you i n d i c a t e d t h a t you sent 

out a w e l l proposal t o Great Western; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. Mr. H a l l i n d i c a t e d there had been s i l e n c e from 

t h a t time; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. Now, Great Western has sent out a w e l l proposal 

t o you; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. (Nods) 

Q. And have they heard anything from you about t h a t 

proposal? 

A. Not from me s p e c i f i c a l l y , no, s i r . 

Q. So there's been s i l e n c e since t h a t time? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

MR. OWEN: Okay. That's a l l I have, Mr. 
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Examiner. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Anything f u r t h e r ? 

MR. HALL: B r i e f r e d i r e c t , yes, Mr. Examiner. 

REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. HALL: 

Q. Mr. Baker, l e t ' s look a t E x h i b i t 17. Can you 

i d e n t i f y t h a t f o r the record, please, s i r ? 

A. I be l i e v e t h i s i s the farmout agreement from Tom 

Brown, I n c . , g i v i n g us the farmout i n t e r e s t i n Section 34 

of 15-34, and also the acreage i n Section 33 and then also 

Section 1 of 16-34. 

Q. Does E x h i b i t 17 i n d i c a t e the f i r m commitment of 

Tom Brown t o p a r t i c i p a t e i n the Humahumanukinukiwapa- — 

A. — -opawaha. 

Q. — -nowa 34.1 well? 

A. I be l i e v e i t j u s t farms out t h e i r i n t e r e s t t o 

David H. A r r i n g t o n O i l and Gas, Inc. 

Q. Does the farmout e x p l a i n why there's no need f o r 

a JOA between A r r i n g t o n and Tom Brown? 

A. I don't know, s i r . I haven't completely read 

through t h i s . 

Q. I f Tom Brown has farmed out i t s acreage i n 

Section 34 t o you, there would be no need f o r an oper a t i n g 

agreement between Tom Brown — 

A. Oh, abs o l u t e l y . 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

84 

Q. Mr. Owen asked you about Great Western's j o i n t 

o p e r a t i n g agreement. Was t h a t ever provided t o you before 

today's hearing? 

A. Not t o the best of my knowledge, no, s i r . 

MR. HALL: Okay, nothing f u r t h e r . 

Move the admission of E x h i b i t 17. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Objection? 

MR. OWEN: No o b j e c t i o n . 

EXAMINER BROOKS: 17 i s admitted. Anything 

f u r t h e r of t h i s witness? 

MR. OWEN: I have nothing f u r t h e r . 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Witness may stand down. 

Mr. Hall? 

MR. HALL: That concludes our testimony, Mr. 

Examiner. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Are you o f f e r i n g any f u r t h e r 

testimony? 

MR. OWEN: No, Mr. Examiner. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay, do you wish t o make 

c l o s i n g statements? 

MR. OWEN: Yes, Mr. Examiner. I f we might have 

about f i v e minutes, I ' d l i k e t o consult w i t h Yates' 

a t t o r n e y about Yates' p o s i t i o n i n t h i s case. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay, w e ' l l take a b r i e f 

recess. We'll take a recess not t o exceed t e n minutes. 
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(Thereupon, a recess was taken a t 2:50 p.m.) 

(The f o l l o w i n g proceedings had a t 3:00 p.m.) 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay, Mr. Catanach i n d i c a t e d 

t h a t he was not going t o attend the c l o s i n g arguments, so I 

t h i n k we can go ahead. 

MR. OWEN: Thank you, Mr. Examiner. 

Mr. Examiner, you have i n f r o n t of you competing 

f o r c e p o o l i n g A p p l i c a t i o n s . That i s the s u b j e c t l i n e of 

the A p r i l 5th, 1995, memorandum from Mr. Catanach t o Mr. 

LeMay. That memorandum sets f o r t h very s p e c i f i c procedures 

or very s p e c i f i c f a c t o r s f o r the D i v i s i o n t o consider i n 

cons i d e r i n g competing forc e p o o l i n g a p p l i c a t i o n s . 

Mr. H a l l has alluded t o a requirement t h a t a w e l l 

proposal be made a c e r t a i n number of days before a 

compulsory p o o l i n g a p p l i c a t i o n i s f i l e d . There i s no such 

requirement i n law or i n f a c t . I n f a c t , the only 

requirement before you f i l e the f o r c e p o o l i n g a p p l i c a t i o n , 

as Mr. Feldewert so ably pointed out, i s t h a t you own an 

i n t e r e s t i n the subject area, and you have not reached 

agreement w i t h anybody else. That s i t u a t i o n e x i s t s . The 

s t a t u t o r y p r e r e q u i s i t e s , the r e g u l a t o r y p r e r e q u i s i t e s , have 

been met f o r Great Western's a p p l i c a t i o n . 

The s p e c i f i c f a c t o r s — i t was E x h i b i t Number 9 

t o Great Western's case, Mr. Examiner. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay, yeah, go ahead. 
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MR. OWEN: The f i r s t s p e c i f i c f a c t o r which the 

D i v i s i o n should consider i s any i n f o r m a t i o n r e l a t e d t o 

prehearing n e g o t i a t i o n s conducted between the p a r t i e s . 

Before the September 5th hearing, Great Western 

proposed a continuance of Arr i n g t o n ' s case so t h a t the 

p a r t i e s could negotiate. A r r i n g t o n , c i t i n g the lease 

e x p i r a t i o n — w e l l , i t s term assignment e x p i r a t i o n , 

d e c l i n e d t o continue and opted t o put on i t s case a t t h a t 

time. That forced Great Western's hand i n proposing the 

w e l l and i n f i l i n g i t s force p o o l i n g A p p l i c a t i o n . 

A r r i n g t o n says t h a t i t has negotiated w i t h the 

other p a r t i e s . I n r e a l i t y , the other p a r t i e s have never 

been given an o p p o r t u n i t y t o make an informed d e c i s i o n 

about whether t o j o i n A r r i n g t o n i n i t s proposal. A r r i n g t o n 

has never provided a proposed JOA t o any of the other 

p a r t i e s . The p a r t i e s don't know what terms A r r i n g t o n 

proposes t o use i n operating the acreage. 

I n c o n t r a s t , Great Western has proposed the w e l l , 

has provided both the estimated costs and the terms 

o p e r a t i o n , i n the AFE and the JOA, and i n f a c t has secured 

the agreement of 13 other p a r t i e s . 

I submit, Mr. Examiner, t h a t the only p a r t y t h a t 

has negotiated before t h i s hearing i s Great Western. The 

evidence of t h a t n e g o t i a t i o n i s the execution of a j o i n t 

o p e r a t i n g agreement and AFE by 13 other p a r t i e s , 13 other 
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i n t e r e s t owners i n t h i s acreage. The second f a c t o r — That 

f a c t o r i s s t r o n g l y i n favor of Great Western i n t h i s case, 

Mr. Examiner. 

The second f a c t o r i s the w i l l i n g n e s s of the 

operator t o negotiate a vo l u n t a r y agreement. Mr. Examiner, 

t h a t f a c t o r i s very simply s a t i s f i e d by Great Western. 

Great Western has, i n f a c t , negotiated v o l u n t a r y agreement 

w i t h 13 other p a r t i e s . A r r i n g t o n has negotiated v o l u n t a r y 

agreement w i t h no one. Tom Brown, Inc., has executed a 

farmout assignment. That's not an agreement t o j o i n 

A r r i n g t o n ' s proposed operation of the w e l l , t h a t ' s a 

conveyance. 

A r r i n g t o n has negotiated and reached v o l u n t a r y 

agreement w i t h zero other p a r t i e s . 

The t h i r d f a c t o r i n the A p r i l 5 t h , 1995, memo i s 

the i n t e r e s t ownership w i t h i n the p a r t i c u l a r spacing u n i t 

being sought. Great Western represents 68 percent of t h a t 

i n t e r e s t , 67.9689. S i x t y - e i g h t percent of t h a t i n t e r e s t . 

We're not t a l k i n g about Great Western's 16-percent i n t e r e s t 

ownership versus Arri n g t o n ' s 32 percent. I n f a c t , a l l of 

the other i n t e r e s t owners support Great Western's op e r a t i o n 

of t h i s w e l l . Not one of them support A r r i n g t o n ' s . 

A r r i n g t o n only represents 3 2 percent of the i n t e r e s t . 

Great Western represents 67. This f a c t o r i s s t r o n g l y i n 

favor of Great Western. 
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The f o u r t h f a c t o r i s the geologic evidence and 

testimony as i t r e l a t e s t o the proposed w e l l l o c a t i o n . 

That's not a t issue i n t h i s case. Both of the p a r t i e s 

agree t h a t the geology supports the d r i l l i n g of a w e l l 

t h e r e . Both of the p a r t i e s agree, as another f a c t o r , t h a t 

the r i s k penalty should be 2 00 percent. 

The f i f t h f a c t o r i s i n f o r m a t i o n r e g a r d i n g the 

dates the prospect was developed, proposed, e t cetera. 

A r r i n g t o n was f i r s t i n l i n e . A r r i n g t o n submitted a w e l l 

proposal and f i l e d i t s A p p l i c a t i o n f o r compulsory p o o l i n g 

before Great Western d i d . That doesn't mean i t p r e v a i l s i n 

t h i s case. That's one f a c t o r . 

I n f a c t , Mr. Examiner, Great Western hasn't been 

s i t t i n g on i t s hands f o r two years, or since 1972 when i t 

acquired i t s i n t e r e s t . I t ' s been considering t h i s prospect 

since e a r l y 2 002, and i t proposed i t s w e l l on September 

5th, 2002. 

The next f a c t o r i s the overhead r a t e s f o r 

s u p e r v i s i o n . Although Great Western's r a t e s are s l i g h t l y 

lower, I t h i n k t h a t issue i s a wash. I t ' s not r e a l l y an 

issue i n t h i s case. 

The next one i s the proposed r i s k p e n a l t i e s . 

Again, I i n d i c a t e d the p a r t i e s don't disagree t h a t a 200-

percent r i s k penalty should be assessed i n t h i s case 

against the nonconsenting working i n t e r e s t owners. 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

89 

Next f a c t o r i s s i g n i f i c a n t d i f f e r e n c e i n the 

AFEs, the w e l l costs. Again, Great Western's are s l i g h t l y 

lower but not s i g n i f i c a n t l y , and t h a t f a c t o r i s a wash. 

That's a f a c t o r t h a t I don't t h i n k comes i n t o p l a y i n t h i s 

case. 

F i n a l f a c t o r , Mr. Examiner, i s other i n f o r m a t i o n 

deemed p e r t i n e n t by the D i v i s i o n Examiner. You're going t o 

hear a l o t from Mr. H a l l , I'm sure, about the huge number 

of w e l l s t h a t A r r i n g t o n has d r i l l e d i n the immediate area 

i n the l a s t f i v e years. You've heard a l o t of testimony 

about t h a t i n t h i s hearing. 

Mr. Examiner, Great Western d r i l l e d the i n i t i a l 

w e l l i n t h i s prospect i n 1972 and has operated i t 

continuously since t h a t time. I t has d r i l l e d and operated 

numerous w e l l s across the country. We're not t a l k i n g about 

a non-operating i n t e r e s t owner who s i t s i n an o f f i c e and 

signs or declines AFEs. We're t a l k i n g about a s i g n i f i c a n t 

company t h a t operates a s i g n i f i c a n t number of w e l l s , not 

only i n t h i s immediate area, but across the country. 

I t h i n k the most important f a c t o r f o r you, 

though, t o consider i s the f a c t t h a t the m a j o r i t y of the 

i n t e r e s t owners i n the w e l l , 14 owners, r e p r e s e n t i n g 67 

percent, or 68 percent, support Great Western's 

A p p l i c a t i o n . T h i r t y - t w o percent support A r r i n g t o n . Only 

one p a r t y supports A r r i n g t o n , and t h a t ' s A r r i n g t o n h i m s e l f . 
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A l l of the i n t e r e s t owners who support Great 

Western have f o r m a l l y and v o l u n t a r i l y committed t o the w e l l 

through execution of the JOA naming Great Western as 

operator. That JOA covers a very broad a r r a y of 

arrangements between the p a r t i e s w i t h respect not only t o 

the d r i l l i n g of the w e l l but subsequent development, 

accounting, l a w s u i t s between the p a r t i e s , d e f a u l t . 

Mr. Examiner, the p a r t i e s — a compulsory p o o l i n g 

order does not t r e a t the c u r r e n t d r i l l i n g operations i n 

n e a r l y the same d e t a i l as the p a r t i e s have already agreed 

t o Great Western's operation, and i t doesn't even touch 

f u t u r e development. I t doesn't touch accounting, which, as 

Mr. H a l l went i n t o w i t h my c l i e n t , i n f a c t , i s a 

s i g n i f i c a n t concern w i t h A r r i n g t o n as the operator. 

You're faced w i t h the choice of endorsing 14 

i n t e r e s t owners who represent 68 percent of the i n t e r e s t 

and have v o l u n t a r i l y committed t o a JOA, or endorsing a 

m i n o r i t y i n t e r e s t owner and f o r c i n g the m a j o r i t y t o 

u n w i l l i n g l y an operator expressly considered and r e j e c t e d . 

I submit you should choose the former. 

This D i v i s i o n ' s s t a t u t o r y d u t i e s are t o prevent 

waste and p r o t e c t c o r r e l a t i v e r i g h t s . By j o i n i n g Great 

Western's proposal and executing Great Western's JOA, the 

m a j o r i t y of the i n t e r e s t owners have i n d i c a t e d t h e i r 

agreement t h a t Great Western i s the p a r t y b e t t e r s u i t e d t o 
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p r e v e n t i n g waste and p r o t e c t i n g c o r r e l a t i v e r i g h t s . The 

D i v i s i o n should recognize t h a t endorsement. 

Mr. Examiner, there are nine f a c t o r s . Four are 

not a t issue: the geology, the overhead r a t e s , proposed 

r i s k p e n a l t i e s and the s i g n i f i c a n t d i f f e r e n c e i n the AFEs. 

One i s i n favor of A r r i n g t o n : He was i n l i n e 

f i r s t . 

Four are i n favor of Great Western: 

They've conducted extensive n e g o t i a t i o n s w i t h the 

other p a r t i e s t o t h i s case. A r r i n g t o n has never even 

provided a JOA t o anybody else. 

Great Western has, i n f a c t , reached agreement 

w i t h 13 other p a r t i e s . A r r i n g t o n has reached agreement 

w i t h no one. 

The i n t e r e s t ownership, Great Western i s 

repr e s e n t i n g 68 percent of the i n t e r e s t ownership i n t h i s 

case. A r r i n g t o n i s representing 3 2 percent. 

The issue i s not only the i n t e r e s t ownership but 

how t h a t i n t e r e s t ownership has been committed. This has 

been committed through a JOA. Mr. Examiner, from the other 

i n f o r m a t i o n deemed r e l e v a n t by the Examiner, t h a t 

i n f o r m a t i o n s t r o n g l y i s i n favor of Great Western. 

There are f i v e f a c t o r s from the A p r i l 5 t h , 1995, 

memo t h a t are r e l e v a n t i n t h i s case. Great Western 

p r e v a i l s on fou r of those, 80 percent. A r r i n g t o n p r e v a i l s 
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on, maybe, one. 

The evidence i n t h i s case overwhelmingly favors 

Great Western. Both p a r t i e s seek the p o o l i n g of the lands 

and d e d i c a t i o n t o a w e l l a t a s p e c i f i e d l o c a t i o n . Both 

p a r t i e s seek 200-percent penalty against the nonconsenting 

working i n t e r e s t owners. Great Western represents a 

m a j o r i t y , Great Western p r e v a i l s on a m a j o r i t y of the 

f a c t o r s . 

Mr. Examiner, t h i s case r e a l l y comes down t o one 

c e n t r a l p o i n t . We can t a l k about these f a c t o r s and the 

weighing of these f a c t o r s back and f o r t h . We can t a l k 

about A r r i n g t o n ' s extensive experience i n d r i l l i n g i n the 

l a s t f i v e years. I'm happy t h a t they're so proud of t h a t 

experience. We can t a l k about Great Western's experience. 

We can t a l k about a l l those t h i n g s a l l day. But there's 

one c e n t r a l p o i n t . There's disagreement about a l l those 

other issues. There i s no disagreement about the bottom 

l i n e : No one wants A r r i n g t o n as the operator of t h i s w e l l . 

I ask t h a t you enter an order a p p o i n t i n g Great 

Western the operator of t h i s w e l l . 

Thank you. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Mr. Hall? 

MR. HALL: Mr. Examiner, I p r e v i o u s l y made 

comments on the me r i t s of Arrin g t o n ' s A p p l i c a t i o n a t the 

September 5th hearing. Let me make some comments, very 
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b r i e f comments, about Great Western's A p p l i c a t i o n . 

What you have before you i s a p a r t y who comes 

w i t h one h a l f of the i n t e r e s t of A r r i n g t o n , which w i l l bear 

only one h a l f of the costs of the w e l l , an operator who has 

only a f r a c t i o n of the experience d r i l l i n g — a c t u a l 

d r i l l i n g of Morrow and Atoka w e l l s i n southeastern New 

Mexico, coming t o you w i t h a last-minute — not a l a s t -

minute but an untimely w e l l proposal, a f t e r having sat on 

an undeveloped lease f o r 3 0 years. Think about t h a t . That 

i s s i g n i f i c a n t . 

The s i g n i f i c a n c e t h a t Great Western o f f e r e d no 

opi n i o n testimony a t a l l on t h e i r g o o d - f a i t h n e g o t i a t i o n s 

i s not l o s t on me, and i t i s not l o s t on the Hearing 

Examiner, I suspect. They were a f r a i d t o get i n t o t h a t 

issue. Mr. Owen was avoiding having h i s land witness 

t e s t i f y about the go o d - f a i t h n e g o t i a t i o n s entered i n t o by 

Great Western, because there were none. He could not opine 

— gi v e you the req u i r e d testimony t h a t Great Western 

exercise good f a i t h , which i s a s t a t u t o r y and order-

precedent p r e r e q u i s i t e f o r the en t r y of a compulsory 

p o o l i n g order by t h i s agency. 

This case i s not s i g n i f i c a n t f o r g e o l o g i c a l 

issues. There are no disputes over geology. 

I t ' s not s i g n i f i c a n t f o r the w e l l l o c a t i o n . 

Everybody agrees t h a t the w e l l l o c a t i o n i s a p p r o p r i a t e . 
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Great Western agrees w i t h A r r i n g t o n ' s e s t a b l i s h e d l o c a t i o n . 

And i t i s not s i g n i f i c a n t f o r any w e l l - c o s t 

issues. The p a r t i e s are a mere $30,000 apart on t h e i r 

estimates f o r w e l l costs. 

What I t h i n k t h i s case i s s i g n i f i c a n t f o r , and 

what I wish t o address d i r e c t l y w i t h you, Mr. Examiner, i s 

s i g n i f i c a n t f o r i t s departure from e s t a b l i s h e d p r a c t i c e . 

E a r l i e r , I had made a motion t o dismiss the Great 

Western A p p l i c a t i o n because Great Western's A p p l i c a t i o n was 

untimely, and i t v i o l a t e d what i s known as the 3 0-day Rule. 

Great Western can claim a l l i t wants t h a t t h e r e i s no 30-

day Rule. Great Western i s f l a t - o u t wrong about t h a t . Let 

me give you some precedent t h a t shows t h a t . 

Mr. Examiner, I have p r a c t i c e d before t h i s 

agency, r e a l l y , f o r p o r t i o n s of two c e n t u r i e s , b e l i e v e i t 

or not. That's t r u e . There i s not a p r a c t i t i o n e r i n t h i s 

room, i n c l u d i n g Mr. Owen, who has not advised h i s c l i e n t s 

t h a t the D i v i s i o n w i l l not accept a compulsory p o o l i n g 

A p p l i c a t i o n any sooner than 30 days a f t e r having proposed a 

w e l l . I f you come i n w i t h an A p p l i c a t i o n and you haven't 

proposed a w e l l more than 3 0 days out, you w i l l be tossed 

out. That i s esta b l i s h e d p r a c t i c e . 

Let's look a t Order Number R-10,977. I t ' s the 

f i r s t order I've given you i n the packet. I t ' s from the 

Redstone-Fasken case, entered not too long ago, 1998. 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

95 

Here, look at what I've highlighted on page 2: 

"Fasken f i l e d a motion t o dismiss..." because "On January 

26th, 1998...Redstone... f i l e d a compulsory p o o l i n g 

a p p l i c a t i o n . " 

Further on, on page 2: "b) Redstone d i d not 

f o r m a l l y propose the d r i l l i n g of i t s w e l l t o the v a r i o u s 

i n t e r e s t owners i n Section 12 u n t i l February 9, 1998." 

Next h i g h l i g h t e d e n t r y : "Case No. 11,927 should 

t h e r e f o r e be dismissed." 

That's the law around here, Mr. Examiner. I t i s 

the e s t a b l i s h e d p r a c t i c e , and i t i s what i n d u s t r y has 

r e l i e d on, i t i s what a l l p r a c t i t i o n e r s have r e l i e d on f o r 

l i t e r a l l y decades. The f a c t t h a t there i s no w r i t t e n r u l e 

or r e g u l a t i o n or order or memorandum s t a t i n g such i s 

inconsequential. I t i s accepted, recognized p r a c t i c e . 

Under the Supreme Court a u t h o r i t y of General 

E l e c t r i c Company vs . Environmental P r o t e c t i o n Agency — 

I ' l l provide you w i t h a c i t a t i o n l a t e r on — t h a t case 

es t a b l i s h e s t h a t where there i s an es t a b l i s h e d , recognized 

p r a c t i c e , c o n s i s t e n t l y r e l i e d on by p r a c t i t i o n e r s , by 

i n d u s t r y members, i t has the weight of law, whether or not 

i t i s a w r i t t e n r u l e or r e g u l a t i o n . And where an agency 

deviates from an established p r a c t i c e , t h a t i s serious. 

The GE case found t h a t t h a t i s tantamount t o a rule-making 

i n i t s e l f , and i t v i o l a t e s due process. 
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So what do we do i n a circumstance l i k e t h i s 

where an Appl i c a n t comes i n , l i k e A r r i n g t o n , f o l l o w s the 

r u l e s i n good f a i t h , meets a l l the recognized t i m e - l i n e 

requirements, and then a l l of a sudden sees i t s a p p l i c a t i o n 

bumped back f o r 30 days because somebody comes i n w i t h an 

a p p l i c a t i o n w i t h o u t having f i r s t proposed a w e l l . I t ' s 

threatened by t h a t , p a r t i c u l a r l y when i t has a lease-

e x p i r a t i o n problem. 

A r r i n g t o n has heard the promises from Great 

Western t h a t i t w i l l d r i l l i t s w e l l i n time t o meet 

A r r i n g t o n ' s l e a s e - e x p i r a t i o n problems, but t h a t ' s nothing 

but a i r a t t h i s p o i n t . I t ' s a mere promise, c e r t a i n l y not 

supported by any experience t h a t we've seen. And A r r i n g t o n 

i s q u i t e w o r r i e d . 

I t e l l you what — The s i t u a t i o n i t puts 

a p p l i c a n t s i n , and p r a c t i t i o n e r s , i s , we don't know what t o 

t e l l our c l i e n t s . Mr. Feldewert's comments were r i g h t on 

the money i n t h a t respect. What do we do now? How do we 

proceed? 

Because Arri n g t o n ' s i n t e r e s t s are so d i r e c t l y 

threatened by a d d i t i o n a l delays, my recommendation t o my 

c l i e n t w i l l be, look, I don't know t h a t we can a f f o r d t o go 

de novo i f we lose t h i s case and the Great Western 

A p p l i c a t i o n i s not dismissed. We may have t o do something 

el s e . I t may be incumbent upon us t o seek a w r i t of 
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p r o h i b i t i o n superintending c o n t r o l t o get t h i s issue 

resolved and the 30-day r u l e recognized. That would be my 

advice t o my c l i e n t . 

Now, l e t ' s look a t some a d d i t i o n a l D i v i s i o n 

p r o t o c o l and p r a c t i c e . What does the D i v i s i o n do i n cases 

of competing p o o l i n g a p p l i c a t i o n s ? 

I f you w i l l look a t the second paper i n the 

packet I've j u s t given you — again i t ' s the A p r i l 5 t h , 

1995, memo — again, i t o u t l i n e s r e l e v a n t , p e r t i n e n t 

evidence, and i r r e l e v a n t and unnecessary evidence. I had 

Mr. Headington read i n t o the record t h a t i t i s i r r e l e v a n t 

and unnecessary t o take evidence on previous disagreements. 

So the f a c t t h a t Great Western f a i l e d t o pay i t s 

j o i n t i n t e r e s t b i l l i n g s on a Texas w e l l i s of a b s o l u t e l y no 

consequence i n t h i s hearing. I t has no bearing on 

Ar r i n g t o n ' s a b i l i t y t o operate a w e l l . This D i v i s i o n knows 

A r r i n g t o n ' s experience already. That i s a non-issue i n 

t h i s case. A r r i n g t o n i s a competent, w e l l recognized 

operator. 

What else does the D i v i s i o n do when there's 

competing compulsory poo l i n g a p p l i c a t i o n s ? Here's some 

more guidance f o r you. I f you'd look a t the t h i r d 

document, i t i s Order Number 10,922. I t ' s the order issued 

i n 1997 i n a f i g h t between Mewbourne and Devon. There you 

had two operators, v i r t u a l l y i d e n t i c a l f a c t s t o t h i s case, 
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both proposing an e a s t - h a l f w e l l . There was no d i s p u t e 

about geology, no dispute about w e l l costs, r e a l l y . I t was 

heads-up, an even deal. What does the D i v i s i o n do? Here's 

the answer. 

I f you look a t page 7 of Order Number R-10,922, 

f i n d i n g paragraph (21), I t h i n k t h i s i s the r u l e you ought 

t o apply here. I t says, f i n d i n g (21) says: " I n the 

absence of other compelling f a c t o r s , the op e r a t o r s h i p of 

the S/2 of Section 15 should be awarded t o the operator who 

o r i g i n a l l y developed the Strawn prospect, developed the 

geologic data necessary t o determine the optimum w e l l 

l o c a t i o n , and i n i t i a l l y . . . " i n i t i a l l y " . . . i n i t i a l l y sought 

t o o b t a i n farmout or v o l u n t a r y agreement t o d r i l l i t s 

w e l l . " 

That's A r r i n g t o n i n t h i s case, i t i s not Great 

Western. 

F i n a l l y , I t h i n k the evidence i n the case i s 

c l e a r , the D i v i s i o n must consider the r e l a t i v e d i l i g e n c e of 

the p a r t i e s i n g e t t i n g t h i s acreage developed and a w e l l 

d r i l l e d . Here on the one hand, l i k e I say, you have one 

p a r t y w i t h a 30-year lease t h a t i t ' s done nothing t o 

develop. Somebody else d i d the geology, somebody else took 

the i n i t i a t i v e . They were t o t a l l y r e a c t i v e throughout. 

Not so w i t h A r r i n g t o n . A r r i n g t o n acquired h i s 

i n t e r e s t i n January, 2 001, and then he got on i t , he 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

99 

committed capital, he developed geology, he developed 

seismic, he s t a r t e d t r y i n g t o get j o i n d e r i n the w e l l , he 

was g e t t i n g h i s p e r m i t t i n g w i t h the BLM, got h i s t i t l e work 

done, got a surface agreement i n the bag. He went through 

the c h e c k l i s t and completed h i s items. Great Western can't 

say t h a t . 

Why i s d i l i g e n c e important? I t i s a p r e r e q u i s i t e 

t o the e n t r y of a pooli n g case, and I would r e f e r you t o 

Order Number R-11,663, a Commission order issued j u s t l a s t 

year, and t h a t was a f i g h t between D.J. Simmons and 

McElvain O i l and Gas, and i f you would r e f e r t o f i n d i n g 

paragraph 24 of the order, i t says: " I t has long been the 

p r a c t i c e of the Commission t o r e q u i r e p a r t i e s t o show good 

f a i t h and d i l i g e n c e i n proposing a w e l l t o other i n t e r e s t 

owners i n the u n i t as a p r e r e q u i s i t e of a compulsory 

p o o l i n g order." I t c i t e s Law Review a u t h o r i t y f o r t h a t . 

I t a lso says t h a t the O i l and Gas Act may r e q u i r e such 

e f f o r t s . 

There i s no express requirement i n the s t a t u t e or 

the D i v i s i o n ' s Rules t h a t you do so, but the D i v i s i o n and 

the Commission r e q u i r e i t nevertheless. And here's another 

example where an established p r a c t i c e , an accepted 

p r a c t i c e , i s recognized and applied by the agency i n the 

i n t e r p r e t a t i o n of i t s own a u t h o r i t y . 

F i n a l l y , Mr. Examiner, the D i v i s i o n cannot pass, 
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must not pass on the op p o r t u n i t y t o see an operator name a 

w e l l the Humahumanukinukiopawaha "3 4" Number 1. That i s a 

very compelling reason t o deny Great Western's A p p l i c a t i o n 

and grant A r r i n g t o n ' s . 

(Laughter) 

MR. HALL: That's a l l I have, Mr. Examiner. 

MR. OWEN: Mr. Examiner — 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Well, we've managed t o deal 

w i t h the Glass-Eyed Midge and I've f o r g o t t e n what a l l e l s e , 

but we're very f a m i l i a r w i t h Mr. Ar r i n g t o n ' s o r i g i n a l i t y . 

MR. OWEN: Mr. Examiner — 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Before — I have one 

question — 

MR. HALL: Yes, s i r . 

EXAMINER BROOKS: — Mr. H a l l . I s your 

understanding of the 30-day r u l e t h a t you a l l u d e t o — i s 

i t your understanding t h a t the proposal must precede the 

f i l i n g of the compulsory poo l i n g proceeding by 3 0 days? I s 

t h a t — 

MR. HALL: At l e a s t . 

EXAMINER BROOKS: — what you're saying, i s 

t h a t — Well, doesn't t h a t create a serious problem f o r 

somebody who j u s t f i n d s — gets served w i t h a compulsory 

p o o l i n g a p p l i c a t i o n , and then they don't have time t o act 

before the hearing on t h a t compulsory p o o l i n g a p p l i c a t i o n , 
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and they have t o f i l e t h e i r own a p p l i c a t i o n i n order t o get 

a continuance on t h a t hearing. 

MR. HALL: Well — 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Maybe t h i s i s an argument t h a t 

should not be — t h a t I should not r a i s e i n the context of 

a d j u d i c a t i n g a case, but something t h a t should be taken up 

i n the proposed rule-making proceeding, but — 

MR. HALL: Well, I t h i n k t h a t ' s r i g h t , but I 

t h i n k you can apply t h a t analysis here. And I t h i n k t h a t 

begs the question, what i s the d i l i g e n c e of the p a r t i e s ? 

The other p a r t y was f r e e f o r 3 0 years t o promote i t s 

acreage, develop a w e l l , f i l e a compulsory p o o l i n g 

a p p l i c a t i o n a t any time since 1973, I understand. Where 

was i t ? 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Rebuttal? 

MR. OWEN: B r i e f l y . 

Mr. Examiner, I'm glad t h a t Mr. H a l l brought you 

these cases from the D i v i s i o n . I'm glad t h a t he r a i s e d 

t h i s issue. 

I ' d l i k e you t o take a look a t the f i r s t case 

t h a t he has on ther e , Case Number 11,9 27, Order Number 

R-10,977. I n t h a t case the reason i t was dismissed i s 

because the proposal was made a f t e r the a p p l i c a t i o n was 

f i l e d . 

That's not the case i n t h i s case. I n t h a t case 
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the r e was no JOA entered by the p a r t i e s , entered by 67 

percent of the p a r t i e s naming Great Western as the 

operator. Those issues are not presented i n t h a t case, 

t h e r e f o r e t h a t case was decided on a d i f f e r e n t basis. 

I n t h i s case we have a proposal made by Great 

Western and an A p p l i c a t i o n f o r compulsory p o o l i n g f i l e d . 

The reason i t was f i l e d so q u i c k l y i s because Great Western 

wanted t o nego t i a t e w i t h A r r i n g t o n and asked f o r a 

continuance t o today's hearing. A r r i n g t o n d e c l i n e d t o 

neg o t i a t e and wanted t o put on i t s case. I t ' s e n t i t l e d t o 

do so. 

S i m i l a r l y , Great Western owns an i n t e r e s t i n the 

sub j e c t spacing area, has a r i g h t t o d r i l l on i t . I t 

proposed a w e l l , i t f i l e d a compulsory p o o l i n g A p p l i c a t i o n . 

The s t a t u t o r y p r e r e q u i s i t e s are s a t i s f i e d , Great Western i s 

pr o p e r l y before you. 

I want you t o look c a r e f u l l y through these cases 

a f t e r the hearing, I want you t o look f o r the words "3 0-day 

r u l e " . I t doesn't e x i s t . 

Mr. Examiner, the A p r i l 5th, 1995, memo r e s u l t e d 

from a great — and you can t a l k w i t h Mr. Catanach about 

t h i s , you can t a l k w i t h Mr. Stogner about t h i s — r e s u l t e d 

from a huge number of disagreements between Nearburg and 

Yates. They would not negotiate w i t h each other. I t was 

f r e q u e n t l y the p r a c t i c e t h a t i n order t o p r o t e c t i t s 
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i n t e r e s t a p a r t y would have t o f i l e a compulsory p o o l i n g 

a p p l i c a t i o n simultaneous or very s h o r t l y a f t e r proposing a 

w e l l . 

Not one b i t of t h a t i n f o r m a t i o n made i t i n t o the 

f a c t o r s t o be considered i n the A p r i l 5th, 1995, memo. 

That's the only memo before you which e s t a b l i s h e s a 

precedent. 

I' d l i k e t o go on i n the i n f o r m a t i o n provided t o 

you by Mr. H a l l . On page 7 of Order Number R-10,922 i t 

s t a t e s , " I n the absence of other compelling f a c t o r s , the 

oper a t o r s h i p . . . " should be given t o the f i r s t p a r t y t o 

propose the w e l l . 

We have other compelling f a c t o r s . We have 67 

percent of the working i n t e r e s t , 13 other i n t e r e s t owners 

supporting Great Western. We have zero supporting 

A r r i n g t o n . No one wants A r r i n g t o n t o operate t h i s w e l l . 

That's a compelling f a c t o r , Mr. Examiner. 

F i n a l l y , I ' d l i k e t o look a t the l a s t case 

provided by Mr. H a l l . I t ' s a great case, I l i k e i t a l o t . 

Page 5, f i n d i n g number 24: " I t has long been the 

p r a c t i c e of the Commission t o r e q u i r e p a r t i e s t o show good 

f a i t h and d i l i g e n c e i n proposing a w e l l t o other i n t e r e s t 

owners i n the u n i t . . . " 

Mr. Examiner, who has 13 other i n t e r e s t owners 

signed up? Who has d i l i g e n t l y pursued n e g o t i a t i o n w i t h the 
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other i n t e r e s t owners i n t h i s case? Great Western has. 

The other i n t e r e s t owners entered an appearance 

i n t h i s case through Mr. Carr's f i r m a t the September 5th 

hearing. They d i d n ' t need t o enter an appearance i n t h i s 

case today, because they've j o i n e d Great Western i n t h i s 

w e l l . 

Great Western has been d i l i g e n t and i t has 

conducted i t s n e g o t i a t i o n s i n good f a i t h . That good f a i t h 

i s evidenced c l e a r l y by the execution of a j o i n t o p e r a t i n g 

agreement by 13 other i n t e r e s t owners. 

Mr. Examiner, the compelling evidence i n t h i s 

case p o i n t s t o Great Western's operatorship of t h i s 

prospect. 

Thank you. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Mr. Carr, d i d you want t o add 

anything? 

MR. CARR: I'm not going t o add anything t o the 

hearing. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay, very good. Then Cases 

Numbers 12,922 and 12,943 — Well, l e t me be sure I'm r i g h t 

here. 12,9- — 

MR. OWEN: That's c o r r e c t , Mr. Examiner. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: I s t h a t Great — 12,9- — 

MR. OWEN: That's Great Western's. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: — i t ' s Great Western's, 
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r e l a t e s t o t h i s s e c t i o n . 

Cases Number 12,922 and 12,943 w i l l be taken 

under advisement. 

MR. OWEN: Thank you. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: And t h i s docket stands 

adjourned. 

(Thereupon, these proceedings were concluded a t 

3:30 p.m.) 
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